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The pioneer in the new era of ecological fertiliser industry
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Information for Investors

Listing Information

Listing Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”)

Stock code 509

Key Dates

27 March 2018
6 June 2018 to

13 June 2018

(both days inclusive)
13 June 2018

Announcement of 2017 annual results
Closure of register of members
(for annual general meeting)

Annual general meeting

Share Information
Company’s shares of HK$0.02 each
(the “Shares”) in issue
(31 December 2017)
Market capitalisation (31 December 2017)
Board lot size

4,581,116,843 Shares

HK$994,102,354
5,000 Shares

Earnings Per Share for 2017
Basic HK5.67 cents
Diluted HK5.67 cents

Dividend Per Share for 2017
Interim
Final (proposed)

Nil HK cents
Nil HK cents

Share Registrar and Transfer Offices

Principal:

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
Royal Bank House

3rd Floor, 24 Shedden Road
P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman lIslands

Hong Kong:

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Registered Office
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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T FETBEHSE

Five Year Financial Summary

2017

TER
HK$’000

2016
TAL
HK$'000

2015
TAL
HK$'000

2014
57
HK$'000

2013
TAL
HK$'000

BHZ12531H1%& For the year ended 31 December
'ON Revenue 3,772,290 2,589,221 2515602 2,072,519 1,640,201
HEKAK Cost of sales (2,853,587)  (1,829,360)  (1,729,567)  (1,412,575)  (1,132,526)
£7 Gross profit 918,703 759,861 786,035 659,944 507,765
EtA R F 8 Other income and gains, net 115,747 67,884 72,578 18,346 10,469
HERTHEREER Selling and marketing costs (159,496) (93,911) (113,406) (103,116) (69,437)
TR Administrative expenses (317,542) (159,379) (139,742) (63,302) (55,767)
HBER Finance costs (151,486) (117,564) (87,390) (44,186) (21,441)
BR TG RAL R A Profit before income tax 405,926 456,891 518,075 467,686 371,589
ERES Income tax expense (144,304) (143,839) (155,006) (128,045) (94,456)
EREM Profit for the year 261,622 313,052 363,069 339,641 277,133
THATEIEFAEF :  Profit for the year
attributable to:

/NGTE 2PN Owners of the Company 260,316 302,334 314,479 287,910 230,215

FERRER Non-controlling interests 1,306 10,718 48,590 51,731 46,918
REM : Earnings per share:

- ER(ERABIL) - basic (HK cents per share) 5.67 6.57 7.45 8.01 7.01

-#E(ERBI) - diluted (HK cents per share) 5.67 6.57 7.33 7.79 6.80
H12531A7 As at 31 December
EEDE Total assets 7,502,278 5246469  5421,692 3,796,956 2,840,222
BRESE Total liabilities (3,848,850)  (2,192,003)  (2,057,170)  (1,430,315) (687,260)
Enigs Total equity 3,653,428 3054466 3,364,522 2,366,641 2,152,962
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Five Year Financial Summary

Bzt 2017
notes TER

BZ12531HIEE  For the year ended 31 December

B RERD X Return on shareholders’ equity 1 7.9% 11.1% 10.6% 13.0% 11.6%
BEERRE Return on total assets 2 3.5% 6.0% 6.7% 8.9% 9.8%
BRHEFEEY Interest coverage 3 3xfE 5xf& Bxf HxfE 18x 1%
H12531F7 As at 31 December
BELE Gearing ratio 4 27.3% 29.4% 25.7% 23.4% 10.6%
B R Liquidity 5 1xf& 3xfE 3xfE oxfE oxfE
e - notes:
1. ANAREAAREFERER,REEDS 1. Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company/
Shareholders’ equity
2. FR&MBEHE 2. Profit for the year/Total assets
3. BEEBREFNBRZINER M ERX 3.  Profit before income tax and interest expense/Interest
expense
4. BiEE BEBE 4.  Total borrowings/Total assets
5  REBEE/ RBAR 5. Current assets/Current liabilities
PN FE=
Revenue Margins
EHET T
HK$' 000,000 %
4000 35
3500 30
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15
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500 5
0 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 0 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
| !T! FE7 Gross profit ETZ F A F Profit for the year
RAREE ABEFRER FESHAEE
Profit for the Year Attributable Total Equity
to Owners of the Company
EEET BT
HKS$’ 000,000 HK$' 000,000
350 4000
300 3500
250 3000
200 2500
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150 1500
100 1000
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0 0
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AANERRUELEAEEZRBRAR([ARE ] EREAMBAR Sl ELB L IR AEEDER(TEE])
S([EFF)) MAREAEEBE2017F12AMN BEFE(FRD) 22 FEREAHREEH -

20174 - AEBEMAFE - 8K BEREXFREEAE  HEEDLEEREEHMORMARMERRI - &
BETEAGERNE - BEERRNEMEERETE T RIFAOER -

BEERER

FARAEELEHERREEFEEFEEARER  EmIESTnELE  HEBRAN  BEERTSE  BXE
EHEB2RBEBANER - 2017 F4AREMAESERERURA A IRNABR 2B (NUERLALRDER
HAREE - IURABERTFEREEALKMERE  RERMEE/LRZRXKRE  BEZHIENEM - RILUR
BERERETZBELECIRCRETL] RPEECITXRER2BEREEMERMBITETEEML] - FENK
BLURAR  TEBATAEEERER BLTHERSK BARNTTAKSEETEERTENRENT SN
B RE BREERENEEEMERBERIINNEZRER BERIMIRTAIFRENE - BAKEE—FH
RITMGRHTELNEEEE -

AEBRERHERAR LD = > 28R - £REIEH - LR ABERIICH - ARBIEN T ERENE
TIRERE R ITHARERER N HRERGOER - 215 ARE - £YWE  BERE  AHREREE
BE e B T 2HEEREREYRENREHIEETENEE - SFEEE - £6mx  BRESERNE
B ETENES  BRAEHEIER/AREDRHEELSEOMNESGCEILEH 851 MER - SEE - 2R
e~ RBEEEHE -

REBURNIHEAmENEERAMERERIEF - F—HF EFLES550,000F - 02017 F10 A AMAKBHE
E ERREaBENERAEAR S _HBEFERRAS50,000MiBE TEOEMENER - THAKEAEREM
FREIEE 1,400,000 BRI AER 2 BREKRE  BRAEBIHLLURAB = KEEREMOERFRERLS=E
3,000,000 » EEPEHEBEERT —EFD  MEER  ZHITFTENERGRMERER - EERHRFEE
BR AURENEEES BITHEEZ:  BRHEIFEEDESE  RIHERKIELASEBEEREZNE
BEd  ESE-KEERMEGETIE - Al EEEETERENERIBERT -



E

TEERE

017HEFR 2EEEBEEARE K EME LB EAEENBARZEE(BER)ERAR([EEE
B BUD SR - 601) 2 MM RS RIS AR BM M E D - HRGIGEELEEHNERL  MEEEBBEIELE
TBEEK

BRBRERFEFETERR - 2017F1A230 > TEH - #FhEk - MRS VERADBECGIMHEZERERRE
M) BEERW-HHMHRE BRIZERMERE  THREANMHERERZRS ) - RERMHERESIH
MWBRRTF > BREHTEMAZRREREHANEBRESE - RF1 268 BREXZEM2017FE 157
NE - EARMEBREFREXEREMMRBEERR)  SUHEKAEENHASFTIAESD - BEEX
HEASWANISR  HABEGEREZASERSIRSRER -

3]

BETRREERGAUEBENERABENBTEBNTRERAEER  SESEXERERLBENRELAEE
TEEBINMREER - LGN ERBRHMINGEEERES RIFNEBENTISASR  IWRALAERIR
BzR] - RHEREAESERMORZTEEE  METRsERMRAREHNEREERETIS®  BRE
FREEZEEULBEEFZTILEL  BLEZVBRAEERKNAFERRETRENER - H2H)k
BIEEFELEREREEMERNBERESE  THOMNARM - BRMAEES - HEEZNRFRA > 2R E
IRFEEHEBONERR  BHIRTIEENESE  BLRERKI2E®

AANERREFTS  BRHAEREGVN2RBRACEBE FAAKEMELNER - A - TRELEER S MK

R EBBEALMERFPHE  BAARX —BEURBAEENRNF - EREN—F  RAEHBERS -
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ES e
20174 RHEEHHEER 2 XEGEEEABHARY  HETHEEBQERTRR  ERBRARA

e dmBME  BERAAREM - FEIBEANEELE (GDP)R 2017 FIRFILER6.9% © HEEN —WOLEILRK
B AREBRERNFIEREXRHEL IR ERSBEXKEH -

HZE2017F 12 A1 BEFE(FR]) - NEBEEIWA _EF45.7% Z 3,772,290,000 7T (2016 FF : 2,589,221,000#
TL) - BT EERIS 24.4% (2016 F : 29.3%) ° R EILEIER 2 WA A 2,225,499,0007% 7T (2016 FF : 1,399,088,000
BIT) » B EF59.1% B AREBEE U A59.0% (2016 FF : 54.0%) : & BIEEEMER 2 WA AE1,158,248,0007 T
(20164F : 910,984,000/ 7T) » FAILLIER 27.1% » (GAREBLHIIA 30.7% (2016 £F : 35.2%) °

F S EE 30

1. EHEEFEREA

AEBERZEERER =EEEEN  DRIMATIEHE TAKRKUR ETFEESEMEERIETSER RIF M
BHBEMERE -

Hep  WRARECIROAERAR(NILURAB DR 2017 F4 AHALRER - AAEEERIEHERE RIFEK
A RAREEEHERDLREN  BERREELE « THEHM  ERILRA R U RFZAT AR A ER
T EPEATR - AN B AT AR R FE AR R R 8% 3,000,000 B - B £ &R F BIAEREAER KB B 2175 -

AEBNUMNIAEAHENEEEMEREEFIER - F—HFEEES50,000 PR AEELR - ER 2017410
A anHEE  EREESEENEREAR 5 - HFERA850,000818 8 T2 M iSRKB)ER - )T
Toln B A E R BT ERE 1,400,000 @ WASERBMOBTHSE L EABBESRERE -

2. [EHEmRGEEL

AEBMEFENERRNBERNERRIZHIL - BEEEHER AR LD =  £RRBIEH - Thag ek
MBI E -

AREBEHTIZREENETEERE R LM AREREER D HREAFOER - 81 AHRE - £%
B BEEE ARERERES ETERANEDERKCIER  REFEHEE  £REERT SR
RaiRrt - £REHEARENERER  ASBERASHEWTCRM - BRI EREEMENABE - BEa
RSEVREREE  XEARELLBEERE  BREACERRERBNEK - N X BEENERIE
VmEMmEREET2HEH - BRESE  fox  BERERNETHMETERNER - AEEEL
BEMENARROSRRNOEELEHESRERESE - AFEREAR AT HEERAZSHE [
RXAGBETERNESE MERKSER  ULRREREVARNMESZHENGE - AEEHEE 2T
MNEK - RELE RUBEANRALE RAREAEEEFENRE &E2RMEHER A FERERMH
JE - BANENEIEERREDRUEAENNES CRIER - B4  MEKE 85 BRIE  R¥EZE
PER S o REELmm | [BEX ImERERRALEHNERER  ZEERAREMS
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TALEEMSERNSEREESR  JLAERSENZEMNHMUEHER  ZEHERTEFERKN - E
MR EER - FF  ZHFUEHERGERS TIHMURMELEEMHEILTRTETEHERNE
BRe WS  THEMBRRTER BELEER  ROMAEERTRSKBEEROE NGRS AIER
EMREXRA  E—PRERENERHER  CSRH T IHFNMLURMELEESEREER I MHEER

ENS -

FR AKEHEEIWEBERFER - [EwT JHUNEMEER  ZERAIRSEANMBE - WERA
AR RER - BREER  ZEBRE  BRIE - A TERECLEEMERENAEY  MAEREH
EREBEN AEES—MERNGRE]  RALENTEREETERM - FHRINEENRATERIUE
REVE  BEXTPENZEVEREVRAR  IMIEDNEINRLRER  REEVESERN &
MR R TIRRE IR

BEETFERXHEAEBENERARENBRRANEERRGFERREXSHBENTEENALEER - X
HIREMEEMOEREMOERTIZRIES  BRASER - SERKBOEAKSERHEXRE  BY
BR-FREEF RELERBRHNLETAR  AEENERENETEEARRERIETISE ZHIF
BE RULEBARECEEXRSESNEE -

3. HEHEER

ERIAAEEMHUAREHEREERNTS  AREHEEENHEEMRE-PTE - HERRLW
BLURABNEECETERE  CABHRRIENNZ2EEETRE (AR - ILRABA0ZFKE
BRIEES  THEREEARZIRXNMEEARRMEAE @ SIEMELTERMNER - EERMERE
RIEMZ LELAEES  BREIBEX]  [RAALISHREBHELETSAR  RIEBERD - KEEMEE -
WHBILRAATEREAEBEHEEGRE @ @EENEERN - BEMRAAEEERBEERITENREMN
MW - BMNRBERAEZAS - RAKRERKEHEBE - TRREREAZE -

TEEERER

AEER2017FIAEMBEREZTEBEMBERNDARAR([HEBE ) hESBEEFN#E T ASEH
BARES(BEBR)BRAF(MREEER] - ROASE - 601.HK) ([EERE])  R2017TFFR BEXEHEMA
REIFTRK o EME  ELBAEEEREZHNEBANSUAEBHHE D - LB IKETEELHER - M
RESESTIZLECEERT -

RBRE

AEECEBHEMESTZEREARBERARIRACER cBEEREFATEETAURA1,158,248,000
70 (20164F 1 910,984,000/ 7) * $HE 2 450,463 (2016 F : 36,201H) * RS BHEERHEER L AR
HN39.4% ° N HEKZERENERE24.3% (20164  20.0%) - RIEBRERNTEBERT 2BEER
ERZHEERASB271%EER -

REBEBRUNFEs eBEEEREN - BHOERREFN 100,000 - FHEEERE BT IR  BESERKE
BRBERRABRFELN170,000M - AEEHAZESUESZASEETENRBHIERMERN - ARBRFH L
HERBTHEETHEERNBERENERE  ARENSBEEREBRNB N - BERATEE -

Hitb 3%
AEENEMEXBEERMNEHLETERER ASERANEECNAREERMEEELERNEREE

R wRIaRIE TR RN c ERFREEREERMMERTERENARET - AEEEE HERND
AO TEARIME X UBFRHEREORA -
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RE

EREMEMNEREIER - AEEEF20185F  PELEFEERS TRIER  BREREFURBRT M
TEHEASEERENTRKBEMREE  TXNREXTVRET  EnERAERERE SEWL &K
B -EUARBARFZE  RRFE  AIFENERED  BUTEZRCEMBEFRE - SESED R NREER
RFCEXENRIBRRER T

BREGESRERLCMAEEBOENEEK - TEMNERCE(TER) BMONGEE L ITRERERNE
BERRL - PEFREHEIENNEAEGELN R AT TR 10% 12715 2020 F 8 30% -+ AR EEHE AL
EHERRSEATISER -

AEBZREHMEBRENCERBEBRAER  BRURABLEEMEZSEAZRVBNIALES W EERE
BIER > AEBEHRISERARRIT - AERHE R B E 8L 587K 3,000,000 M » # — S IEAEBEIRE - RiER

HAEBEETBEEMTENRENT SN - EREKREER > A5O0 0 THRED  REFE=ZBAEHNEE
EMEFELEEIEEYESE  FLHEERINEREARERNOMER

TREENE

HECOITF12 A BEFEE AR ELTECEREH2016 FRMEELENT - TRAAVINTEES(GARE
BHZE2017F 12 A1 HIEFEMREHEZBIES9.7% o

(a) FEEmZHEER

2017 & 2016 £
g i

BEIER 1,066,541 692,197 541
EBHEEREK 50,463 36,201 39.4

(b) FEEmZFHIEE:

2017 & 2016 4
T, M BT, W
BERRER 2,087 2,021 3.3
TEEEREY 22,468 24,388 (7.9)
(c) EFR=E:

BEPRRER 23.2 28.4 (5.2)
TEHEEMER 24.3 29.0 4.7)

REE ZEEEN X 24.4 29.3 (4.9)
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LERARER

FR - AEBEEUALS,772,290,000/87C * RILL EFA45.7% - SEMBELE  EEEREBLEBEE
MER  WADRIIRF59.1% K% 27.1%

BEPRREBARAFIRALE2,225,499,0008 70 $52 41,066,541 RILL DB EFA T 459.1% K% 54.1% °
Mt ZEAIERERMURABA2017F4 A1 HE  EXHFARER » KIBRAAEENHEERWA - FR - 1L
HAL A BREESR T #392,220 W14 € K 49902,307,000/8 TWA - EA - EETIEHEP —(GEEGETTH
EmALNE B E 7T TaEmEERRNRARLLRD46.6% - ARBAERR S EFE £ EEER KXIEE
MIEEHE - fFALRA B MARIRABAEERES  ERABENECNETEEREHENERNS 20858 =
23.2% °

SCEEEREBFARALE1,158,248,0005 70 © $E=/550,4630F ' RSB FH T427.1% X% 39.4% - tH=
RATEREAMEERMZHEESRA  PEFEENM CSEERBEERL EFA4 12,5830 - MAREMEER ZHE
ERA CEBEEREEENERTRN47THEEDE - AEB M I EACEREEMERNEMEFHES -

ERMELTEENNEENERERZHTERERS  EREBRENRTAEEEEENERLO40T8E -

Hia SR E I8 FEE

EAth WS s 18 % 58 49 5 80,946,00078 7T © AHIEIN450.0% @ TEBFELRITE T AR EE B U &L
& D RI4 AU 32,600,000 7T (2016 4F : E518 487,000 7T ) K #720,660,000 7 7T (2016 4F : 14,056,000 #
JC) °

THEX

REZ T K 43274,675,000 87T » RILLIEINA) 71.8% ° ITHRFAXAIEMEBRHAILRLRE » EFRAXE
ZEEETHFM  FELEE BREUBZEEMEXER MALHAEMNEESER -

AN FEMAEEMEBREEHELNEXERL R 45,687,000 7T °

MBER

B E A /151,486,0008 7T © FEBINE28.9% c EF - R2017F6 A AEBEH THME LMEESE
¥ 4T T EE 101,750,000 T IIE T RBE7.0E 2 HEERE - WHERE T E{E 125,000,000 FT K TRE7.2E
2552018 F 6 AR HIMEREZE (EPRMEESS 250,000 i tEZBBEERETNEZEEHINEE)
NETAEBERPEEBR AR AY—EAAZHEZREERY  AEFELNEZEENMR T ERAE 2#HY
8,600,00087C c BN H2017F4 AILRAAEEEXNHFARNEE - HEBKEBEMEEZFI B L E24,470,000
BIL °
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REBEH & FEL R261,622,00087C - AL TELN16.4% AEEBNEFSEMNERNIEE - ASITRA
BENEMMSNEER > URENEXRRARERBIE  CERMEEFPHERSTIENFER  KMBRHEER
BNEREFPE  AMNREEREFEER -

AEEFBETRERAETFZHRFAERRSRIRERE WEERARTRERZEM(ES : REBRLBEBREY
42,967,000« ABEREBEKEAMEENEEEF445,687,000/87C )

RERE

AEFE+H ERTIAEELMBLURAANKEE  ZE LAEEMEZEARAYIRLERSR B2 TE2E
SHEZE2017F12 31 BILFEE 2 RAAKE -

RBES  RERMBER

AREER2017FNRBDESCETBRAFALEEEREEMETHMEENRE - R2017F12A318 - AEE R
& MIRTTHE A H 495 956,995,000 78 7T (2016 4F : 932,785,000 7T) °

MR2017%F 12831 H » AEBE 2 REEE 2016 FHEMLI32.9%  RBEEFEK 2016 F @ #57.9% - KEE
R2017F BB R(BEEREEREBE)NAE27.3% (2016 4F : 29.4%) ©

AEEREZReERERAKENRMETHELCBTRENETAENEEXBRTE -
EEEKH

R2017F12 A31H - AEBEREREEE - FERYMBEHMRMEI5IKE -

BREIE

2017612 431 B » REBEWEEREREARZE - R BRKRWN T 44(a) FRREERIN
RAEE

K2017F12 431 B - ARBELBEREAXREE - XU BIHREMT S AREERI -
BRER

M2017F 12 A31H » KARAIDEITIRAA91,622,337 87T © D 54,581,116,843 1% » HIXEEO0.028 7T °
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ERXRS

(i) H2016F 8 A3H(RZHEE)  ARRZEHEZ2EKE AR Long Xiang Enterprises Limited (fE&E 75 ) &2
HEEERAERAR(—FTHARARNRTESE I LEMEREZAR) fEAEH ) K Acronagrotrans Ltd
(ERBERR  HEBRFAILRAB Z2505% Em) i L WEHZ - Bt - EFERUHRAEBEME S B
HRAZHEREEQARZ2MER  BeREA/1ETEERN7.768T) - BARBUIEGRZ 2 G RGH
RERETM - FIEFLHARER 2016 F8 A4BNERIMMERARAG BT ZBEAL -

ZRXHETKMLURLALAB2017F4 A1 BERAEEPLZEE AR -

iy M2017FE6A5H - ARQATEIT T HEIE101,750,000F M T2 70EREZHR(RIEZEEEDHEZET
)  ZEZERFIERSET Lm0 iR 2020F7 A3 HEIH -

FAA ARAIAERF70EREZHERAER T EE38,250,000 FT I IL 2 2015 FEITH 7.2 ERESR
¥ o FfR 2 HI{E 86,750,000 ¥ N 7T 2015 FEHITHREEE - ER2017F6 AS0RE2EHEDM -

(i) F2017F 11 A30H  AEBEEKEEEFEARE AEBRSESFER 22 HNEZEEAETBHEEA
DNEEE D AEBRELSEB X - 5228 B REESEAB T B AE2017F9 818 KX2017
F11 AR ZHAERERAEB R EESHESE B A2017F 10 A27 HZBIK -

HEHE

AEAW
AEEZAZEAE URTPETHEBIUT - ZESABRRRGTARE  THPREIFERINYRIRE - FH#
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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited
(the “Company” and together with its subsidiaries, “Century Sunshine” or the “Group”), | am pleased to
present the annual results for the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Year”) of the Group for the perusal of
our shareholders.

In 2017, the Group stepped up our research, development, and innovation, through its active, in-depth
participation and cooperation with the experts in the fertiliser industry. The Group also continues to advance
on technology, to innovate our products, to practise supply-side structural reform; which lay a solid
foundation for the Group’s future positioning and development.

Fertiliser Business

During the Year, the Group increased production capacity rapidly and expanded sales network extensively.
We also achieved leapfrog development in the fertiliser business by diversifying the products and optimising
our sales channels. In April 2017, Shandong Hongri Chemical Joint Stock Company, Ltd. (“Shandong
Hongri”), a well-known compound fertiliser enterprise in China, was formally integrated into the Group. Being
the inventor of sulphur-based compound fertiliser, Shandong Hongri is well-known as the “father of sulphur-
based compound fertiliser” in China. Possessing several patents, Shandong Hongri is the first Stated-level
“National Agricultural-Chemical Services Center (2 Bl{t T 2{LARTEH L))" in Shandong Province and the first
chemical enterprise in China to be named as one of the “Top Ten Outstanding After-sale Service Provider of
National Famous Brands (2BI&ZEEmMEEREITE TEERL).” The consolidation of Shandong Hongri into
the Group not only expanded our production capacity and optimised our sales network, but also enhanced
our reputation and market share. Meanwhile, Shandong Hongri's strong heritage and its national brand
names “Yanyangtian (£tf5X)” and “Dongfanghong (B J54L)” are valuable intangible assets for the Group’s
exploration of new markets.

The Group’s fertilisers are categorised as ecological fertiliser, functional fertiliser, and general fertiliser.
Ecological fertiliser is environmentally friendly as they improve organic soil matter and promote sustainable
productivity. It includes organic fertiliser, bio fertiliser, humid acids fertiliser and organic-inorganic mixed
fertiliser. Functional fertiliser improves crops quality and focus on their special needs, this includes Si-
Mg fertiliser, “4A@7C Sheng Ming Yuan”, “seaweed fertiliser (&3%0E)” and other trace element enhanced
fertilisers. General fertiliser is compound or mixed fertiliser that provides basic nutrition for crops. It includes
sulphur-based compound fertiliser, chlorine-based fertiliser, blended fertiliser and prolong effect, controlled
release fertiliser.

Construction work at the Jiangxi production base was on schedule. Trial production of phase one of the
project (650,000 tonnes production capacity) has commenced in mid-October 2017. Products include high
tower fertiliser and functional fertiliser while the phase two construction (of production capacity 850,000
tonnes) is expected to commence soon. The designed annual capacity at Jiangxi Ruichang base is 1,400,000
tonnes. Upon the completion of the entire project in Jiangxi, combining production capacity with Group’s
Jiangsu and Shandong Hongri production bases, the Group will possess an annual fertiliser production
capacity of over 3,000,000 tonnes. The Group will be able to leverage on the brand names of Century
Sunshine and Shandong Hongri, as well as the capacity of three production bases to achieve further growth.
The Group is and has always been upholding “green, environmentally friendly and sustainable development”
as its theme and focuses on agriculture safety. The Group also adheres to its mission to “make crops more
productive and make the land more fertile.” Braving the wind and billows, the Group will make best use of the
three production bases and spearhead the new era for ecological compound fertiliser.
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Magnesium Product Business

The reorganisation of magnesium business has been completed at the end of 2017. As such, businesses are
delineated between Century Sunshine and Group Sense (International) Limited (“GSIL,” stock code: 601), the
Group’s subsidiary. Century Sunshine will engage in the fertiliser business, while GSIL will mainly engage in
the magnesium business.

Magnesium sector continues to grow on the back of favourable supports from the Chinese government. On
23 January 2017, the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology, the National Development and Reform
Commission, the Ministry of Science and Technology and the Ministry of Finance issued “The Guidelines for
Developing the New Material Industry” (‘¥R EZXZEIEM "), which aims at achieving breakthroughs in
new material product types, key production techniques and equipment. To further provide a clear path to
the development of the magnesium industry, the government listed the key development tasks and related
protective measures. On 25 January 2017, the National Development and Reform Commission issued
“Guiding Catalogue of Key Products and Services for Strategic Emerging Industries” (8B |4 5 8 & ¥ 85 25
EmMRBIEE B L"), in which high-performance magnesium alloy and deformed magnesium alloy were
nominated. Following China’s strong support for magnesium alloy, we believe that the Group’s magnesium
alloy industry will have robust growth in the future.

Looking Forward

Following the acceleration of the supply-side structural reform within the agricultural industry and
implementation of the government’s green-related policies, the Group’s development will be inevitably rapid.
Century Sunshine’s ecological fertiliser and functional fertiliser have a strong reputation and great market
potential. Shandong Hongri, known as the “father of sulphur-based compound fertiliser,” is the renowned
enterprise in China that masters the technology for potassium sulfate fertiliser. With the launch of the new
ecological fertiliser from the Jiangxi production base, the Group will be able to offer more options to satisfy
their customer’s needs. Century Sunshine will seize the opportunity brought by the steady growth of the
Chinese economy and leverage on its competitive edges in technology, resources and brand recognition.
Meanwhile, the Group will continue to invest in research and development to thrive the agriculture fertiliser
business and stick to its mission: “make crops more productive and make the land more fertile.”

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | wish to express my sincere gratitude towards our management team
and staff members for their contributions to the Group during the year. Meanwhile, | would like to take this
opportunity to thank our shareholders, business partners and all our customers for their unwavering support.
In the coming year, we will exert our best efforts to create greater returns for our shareholders.

Chi Wen Fu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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Business Review

In 2017, global economy continued to recover. The US economy saw an upward momentum while the
emerging markets were also going strong. The overall inflation was kept at a modest level. With respect to
China, its GDP growth rate in 2017 stood at 6.9%, according to the National Bureau of Statistics. Riding
on the new cycle of the economic growth, the Group continued to focus on its fertiliser business and
successfully completed the reorganisation of its magnesium business.

During the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Year”), the Group recorded an overall increase in revenue
of 45.7% to HK$3,772,290,000 (2016: HK$2,589,221,000), with gross profit margin 24.4% (2016: 29.3%).
Revenue from the fertiliser business was HK$2,225,499,000 (2016: HK$1,399,088,000), representing a
year-on-year increase of 59.1%, and accounted for 59.0% of the total revenue of the Group (2016: 54.0%);
revenue from the magnesium product was HK$1,158,248,000 (2016: HK$910,984,000), representing a year-
on-year increase of 27.1%, and accounted for 30.7% of the total revenue of the Group (2016: 35.2%).

Fertiliser Business

1. Capacity Increase

The Group’s three production bases are located at Jiangsu, Jiangxi, and Shandong respectively, with
strong national brand recognition and reputation in compound and organic fertilisers markets.

In April 2017, Shandong Hongri Chemical Joint Stock Company, Ltd. (“Shandong Hongri”) was formally
integrated into the Group. The merger has enhanced the Group’s capacity and enriched its product mix.
Upon the completion of the newly constructed project in Jiangxi, combining its capacity with Jiangsu
and Shandong Hongri production bases, the Group will possess an annual fertiliser production capacity
of over 3,000,000 tonnes and become one of China’s largest ecological fertiliser companies.

Construction work at the Jiangxi Ruichang production base was on schedule. Trial production of phase
one of the project (650,000 tonnes production capacity) has commenced in mid-October 2017. Fertiliser
products include high tower fertiliser and functional fertiliser while the phase two construction (of
production capacity 850,000 tonnes) is expected to commence soon. The annual designed production
capacity at Jiangxi Ruichang base is 1,400,000 tonnes, with ancillary facilities such as phosphogypsum
storage/depot, jetties, etc.
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Optimizing Product Mix of the Fertiliser

Besides significant increase in production capacity, product portfolio has been much enlarged. The
Group’s fertiliser products are categorised into three sections: ecological fertiliser, functional fertiliser,
and general fertiliser.

Ecological fertiliser is environmentally friendly as they improve soil organic matter and promote
sustainable productivity. It includes organic fertiliser, bio fertiliser, humid acids fertiliser and organic-
inorganic mixed fertiliser. Against the backdrop of the promotion in using green fertiliser and the
balance of fertiliser application by the Chinese government, the market share of ecological fertiliser is
increasing. Ecological fertiliser is the Group’s traditional product. Applying the latest biological activation
technology, the Group can increase the effectiveness and utilization ratio of its ecological fertiliser, which
make an ideal choice for green agriculture as they can boost crop quality and quantity, and effectively
activate soil ecology. Functional fertiliser mainly refers to the type of products that improve crop quality
and focus on their special needs. It includes Si-Mg fertiliser, “Sheng Ming Yuan (“£#7T)”, “seaweed
fertiliser (B3%2ME)” and other fertilisers with various minor elements. Si-Mg fertiliser is lately developed by
our Group. It is made from serpentine and highly effective; especially in enhancing fertility, combating
insects and bacteria. Other features include drought resistance and water reservation, the ability to help
repair soil fertility and absorb heavy metals as well as improving crop’s taste and quality. The Group
owns the largest and highest quality serpentine reserve in Asia; this assures the quality of our Si-Mg
fertiliser, and the steady supply of the key raw material at a low price. General fertiliser is compound
fertiliser that provides basic nutrition for crops. It includes sulphur-based compound fertiliser, chlorine-
based fertiliser, mixed fertiliser and controlled release fertiliser with prolonged effect. “Le He He (%]
m)” and “Yanyangtian (4 f%X)” are the Group’s branded fertilisers and flagship products in the general
fertiliser category. They are well known in the market.

The production line of the high tower fertiliser at the Jiangxi Base produces high quality and
differentiated fertilisers. These premium products are in high demand and will fill the Group’s product
gap in northern and central China. Moreover, the Jiangxi Base is conveniently located at the southern
shore of the Yangtze River. This reduces significantly transportation cost, further expands the supply
chain and compensates the accessibility of the southern market from our Jiangsu and Shandong
production bases.

During the Year, the Group launched “Sheng Ming Yuan (4 @3 7T),” an independently-developed,
exclusive new product. This functional fertiliser is environmentally-friendly, fast and long-lasting. It can
elevate utilization ratios, improve root condition and enrich the soil. Also, “Sheng Ming Yuan (4%
JC)” can be applied to both economic crops and field crops. “Seaweed fertiliser (83%ME),” the Group’s
another line of new products, is produced with advanced sulphur technology and a specially formulated
seaweed extract. The seaweed extract contains polysaccharide material which serves as a bio-stimulant
that triggers the crops immune system, which in turn, enhances their strength and lowers soil infection
rate.

With Chinese government’s heavy promotion of agricultural supply-side structural reform and
environmentally friendly policies, the demand of ecological fertiliser is undoubtedly magnified now and in
future, boosting the Group’s fertiliser business. As the first Hong Kong listed company that specialises
in ecological fertiliser, the Group’s is poised to become the market leader and highly reputable for its
green business.
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3. Expanding the Sales Network of the Fertiliser Business

The Group’s sales network has been expanded to cover all of China provinces (excluding Tibet).
Upon the launching of products from the newly built production base in Jiangxi, and the acquisition of
Shandong Hongri, the Group expands its market reach out of the eastern Chinese market. Shandong
Hongri has been in operation for over 50 years and is an industry leader in technological development.
It invented sulphur-based compound fertiliser and is known as the “father of sulphur-based compound
fertiliser” in China. The branded products “Yanyangtian (%f%X)” and “Dongfanghong (5 4L)” are
inherently favoured in the compound fertiliser market and well recognised by their customers. The
Group believes that acquiring Shandong Hongri not only complements the Group’s sales network, but
also provides firm support to the future development of its fertiliser business by upgrading production
technology. Group’s recognition and position will be further upended and will thus attract more talent.

Magnesium Product Business

In September 2017, the Group announced the sale of its interest in China Rare Earth Magnesium Technology
Holdings Limited (“China Rare Earth”) and its magnesium business to Group Sense (International) Limited
(“GSIL”, stock code: 601.HK) (“the Transaction”). It was accomplished at the end of 2017. Upon completion
of the transaction, the businesses of the Group and GSIL were delineated. Century Sunshine focuses on the
fertiliser business, while GSIL engages mainly in the magnesium business.

Business Performance

The Group’s magnesium products are broadly classified as basic magnesium products and rare earth
magnesium alloys. The magnesium product business contributed revenue of HK$1,158,248,000 (2016:
HK$910,984,000). Sales volume reached 50,463 tonnes (2016: 36,201 tonnes), while the overall sales volume
of magnesium products increased 39.4% year-on-year. During the Year, the overall gross profit margin of
magnesium business was 24.3% (2016: 29.0%). Sales revenue in the magnesium products business grew by
27.1%, while the selling prices remain stable.

GSIL owns a magnesium production base in Xinjiang, the PRC, of which the government approved a
production capacity of 100,000 tonnes of magnesium alloy. It is expected that the overall production capacity
of the Group’s magnesium product business will reach approximately 170,000 tonnes upon completion of the
expansion of project in Xinjiang. With an array of patents in high-performance magnesium alloys, a seamless
integration of the supply of raw material and increased production capacity, this has placed the Group in a
very favorable position for the future development of its magnesium business.

Other Businesses

Other businesses of the Group include metallurgical flux and electronic products. The Group owns
quality serpentine reserves which is not only a key raw material to produce Si-Mg fertiliser, but is also an
indispensable source of auxiliary material for iron and steel smelting. After setting aside an adequate and
steady portion for the production of Si-Mg fertiliser, we sell a certain amount of serpentine to major domestic
steel enterprises for a continuous and stable income.
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Prospect

In the aftermath of the financial crisis, the Group believes that the Chinese economy will maintain its steady
growth in 2018, given a series of the Chinese government’s prudential policies. It is expected that the
structural reform will accelerate while the industrial and manufacturing sector will remain steady. However,
low-end products may undergo continuous pressure. Despite any setbacks, the Group is and has always
been upholding “green, environmentally friendly and sustainable development” as its motto, and undertaking
a product differentiation strategy. The Group will take advantage of the policies that aim to prompt the
development of the green industry.

China continues to promote the policies on modernization of agriculture and application of new materials. As
set out in the “Guidance on Promoting the Restructuring and Development of Fertiliser Industry (H#E#E/LIETT
H¥ERERMNIFEER) issued by the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology (MIIT), the utilisation
of the new type of fertilisers in China will increase from less than 10% at present to 30% by 2020, creating a
huge market potential for the Group’s new ecological fertiliser.

The Group has achieved leapfrog development during the Year. Following Shandong Hongri’'s production
base going on track and the Jiangxi production base has gradually commenced production, the Group’s
fertiliser business will witness a significant growth of its production capacity and is expected to possess an
annual fertiliser production capacity of over 3,000,000 tonnes. This will further expand the Group’s presence
in the market, and rapidly propel its name in the industry and market position. The Group’s management
team will keep the original aspiration and the mission firmly in mind, and are determined to bring the three
production bases into a new era for ecological compound fertiliser and are dedicated to “make crops more
productive and the land more fertile.”

Key Operational Data

Unaudited key operational data for the year ended 31 December 2017, together with the comparative figures
for the corresponding period in 2016, is as follows. Main businesses listed below contributed over 89.7% of
the Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017.

2016 Increase

Tonnes %

Fertiliser business 1,066,541 692,197 541
Magnesium product business 50,463 36,201 39.4

(a) Sales volume of major products:

(b) Average selling price of major products:

Increase/

2017 2016 (Decrease)
HK$/Tonnes HK$/Tonnes

Fertiliser business 2,087 2,021 3.3
Magnesium product business 22,468 24,388 (7.9)
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(c) Gross profit margin:

Decrease

Percentage

Fertiliser business 23.2 28.4 (5.2)
Magnesium product business 24.3 29.0 (4.7)
The Group’s gross profit margin 24.4 29.3 (4.9)

Operating Income and Gross Profit

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$3,772,290,000 for the year, representing a year-on-year
growth of 45.7%. The revenue from two of the major businesses of the Group, namely fertilizer business and
magnesium business, increased by 59.1% and 27.1% respectively.

The revenue of the fertilizer business for the year was approximately HK$2,225,499,000 with a sales volume
of 1,066,541 tonnes, representing a year-on-year growth of 59.1% and 54.1% respectively. Shandong
Hongri, the well-known compound fertilizer enterprise in China, was formally integrated into the Group since
1 April 2017, bringing a significant increase in both sales volume and revenue to the Group. Shandong Hongri
contributed a sales volume of approximately 392,229 tonnes and a revenue of approximately HK$902,307,000
for the Group during the Year. Revenue generated from Jiangsu production base decreased by approximately
6.6% year-on-year, due to the production volume from Jiangsu was affected by the technology upgrade of
production of new products, occupying one of the production lines of the Group in Jiangsu during the Year.
With the lower gross profit of general fertilizer compared to that of ecological fertilizer and functional fertilizer,
the overall gross profit margin of fertilizers of the Group decreased by approximately 5.2 percentage points
to 28.2%, due to the change in product mix by the soaring sales volume of general fertilizer resulted from the
integration of Shandong Hongri into the Group.

The revenue and sales volume of the magnesium business were approximately HK$1,158,248,000 and 50,463
tonnes for the year, representing respective year-on-year growth of approximately 27.1% and 39.4%. The
uplifted sales volume was mainly attributable to the increase of sales volume in basic magnesium products,
including a year-on-year growth of the sales volume of approximately 12,583 tonnes of magnesium products
from the production base in Xinjiang. As the sales volume of basic magnesium products increased, gross
margin of magnesium product business dropped approximately 4.7 percentage points. The sales volume and
gross profit of rare earth magnesium alloy products of the Group was similar to last year.

Due to the increase in portion of products with lower profit margin of the two main operating businesses, the
change in product mix resulted in the decrease of the overall profit margin of the Group by approximately 4.9
percentage points.

Other Gain or Loss, net

Other gain or loss, net was approximately HK$80,946,000, representing a year-on-year growth of
approximately 50.0%, mainly comprised of gain from change in fair value of financial derivatives of
approximately HK$32,600,000 (2016: loss of HK$487,000) and sales of wastes of approximately
HK$20,660,000 (2016: HK$14,056,000).
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Administrative Expense

The administrative expense for the year was approximately HK$274,575,000, representing a year-on-year
growth of approximately 71.8%. The increment of administrative expense was mainly due to the merge
of Shandong Hongri. Of which were mainly comprised of remuneration of employees, depreciation and
amortization, audit and professional fees for project acquisition, research and development and leases.

Besides, the professional fees of bond issuance and business reorganisation was approximately
HK$45,687,000.

Finance Cost

Finance cost was approximately HK$151,486,000, representing a year-on-year growth of approximately
28.9%. Among which, in June 2017, the Group reformed the composition of our Singapore listed
subordinated notes through the issue of new 7.0% subordinated notes with face value of SGD101.75 million
and the redemption of old 7.2% subordinated notes with the face value of SGD125 million due in June 2018
(of which the holders of old subordinated notes with face value of SGD38.25 million opted for an exchange of
new notes with old notes). As a result, the short-term debt of the Group has been improved. HK$8,600,000
was incurred due to an approximately 1-month overlapping period of the old and new notes, and the
acceleration of amortization of actual interests by the early redemption of old notes. Besides, the integration
of Shandong Hongri into the Group since April 2017 took up interest of approximately HK$24,470,000 from
its business operation.

Margin

The profit after tax of the Group was approximately HK$261,622,000, representing a year-on-year decrease
of approximately 16.4%. The Group strived to maintain the sales of products with high gross profit, and
develop market shares for products with low gross profit, so as to increase sales revenue and overall profits,
and also satisfy the needs of product diversification from our customers and expand our customer base. All
these supports the Group’s sustainable development.

Decrease in profit was mainly due to the increment of unrealised exchange loss, finance cost and
administrative expense during the Year, in which unrealised exchange loss was approximately HK$42,967,000,
and the professional fees for bond issuance and group reorganisation was approximately HK$45,687,000.

Final Dividend

The Group treasures the investment opportunities on the production capacity expansion on Jiangxi and the
acquisition of Shandong Hongri with priority, for so, and taking into account the capital expenditure and
operating cash flow required for the above project expansion, the Board does not recommend the payment of
the final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Liquidity, Liabilities and Financial Resources

The Group’s liquidity in 2017 was mainly derived from cash generated from business operations and financing
activities during the year. As at 31 December 2017, total amount of bank and cash balances of the Group
was approximately HK$956,995,000 (2016: HK$932,785,000).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s total borrowings increased by approximately 32.9% as compared
to 2016, while net current assets decreased by approximately 57.9% as compared to 2016. The Group’s
gearing ratio (calculated by total borrowings over total assets) was approximately 27.3% in 2017 (2016:
29.4%).

The Group’s existing cash resources together with the steady cash flows generated from operating and
financing activities are sufficient to meet its business needs.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had pledge of its assets, details of which are disclosed in Note 35 to the
financial statements.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2017, other than those disclosed in Note 44(a) to the financial statements, the Group did
not have any material capital commitments.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2017, other than those disclosed in Note 51 to the financial statements, the Group did
not have any significant contingent liabilities.

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2017, the issued share capital of the Company were HK$91,622,337, divided into
4,581,116,843 shares of HK$0.02 each.

Significant Transactions

()  On 3 August 2016 (after trading hours), Long Xiang Enterprises Limited (a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as the Purchaser), entered into an acquisition agreement with Prosperous
Rich Holdings Limited (a company indirectly held by the Company’s former executive director, Mr.
Yang Yuchuan, as the Vendor) and Acronagrotrans Ltd (as the Target Company, which directly holds
50.5% interests in Shandong Hongri), pursuant to which, the Purchaser conditionally agreed to buy,
and the Vendor conditionally agreed to sell the entire equity interest in the Target Company, at the cash
consideration of US$1 (equivalent to approximately HK$7.76), which is payable in accordance with the
terms and conditions thereto at Completion. Details of which, please refer to the relevant announcement
on the HKEX and the company’s website made on 4 August 2016.

The transaction was completed and Shandong Hongri was consolidated into the Group with effect from
1 April 2017.
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(i)  On 5 June 2017, the Company issued 7.0% subordinated notes with the face value of SGD101.75
million (under the Multicurrency Medium Term Note Programme). The notes are listed on the Singapore
Stock Exchange and will mature on 3 July 2020.

On the same date, the Company redeemed the face value of SGD38.25 million the 7.2% subordinated
notes issued in 2015 by exchange for the new 7.0% subordinated notes. The remaining subordinated
notes issued in 2015 of the face value of SGD86.75 million were fully redeemed on 30 June 2017.

(i) On 30 November 2017, the Group has completed its group reorganisation plan, the Transaction, all of
the Group's interests in its magnesium business will be held through GSIL to allow better delineation of
the businesses of the Group and GSIL. Details of which, please refer to the joint announcements dated
1 September 2017 and 30 November 2017 made by the Group and GSIL and the circulars dated 27
October 2017 made by each of the Group and GSIL.

Project Overview

Dolomite Mine

The Group’s dolomite mine is situated in Baishan City, Jilin Province, the PRC. The mine is operated by open-
pit method, and therefore no additional exploration works are involved or required. Only simple infrastructure
works for open-pit mining are involved in the development activities, and no underground drilling or structural
works are involved. The dolomite mined is raw material for producing magnesium products of the Group. The
transportation cost for raw material is relatively low due to the close proximity of the mine to the production
base of the Group.

The dolomite mine of the Group was reported under the Chinese resource/reserve categories. As at 31
December 2017, the anticipated resource and reserve volumes were determined based on the yearly
reduction of quantity mined to calculate the remaining resource and reserve volumes. There is no material
change in the assumptions of estimation by the Group as compared with those previously disclosed. The
resource and reserve volumes was reviewed by the Group’s internal geological experts. As compared with the
state as at 31 December 2016, there was no material change in the resource estimate and ore reserve of the
dolomite mine during the Year.

For the two years ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the output of Dolomite Mine are as
follow:

Qutput (note)

Dolomite Mine 443,343 448,449

note:

Output is the stock-in-quantity from Dolomite Mine, including mine extraction for the year.

During 2017, the expenditures incurred in mining activities were mainly for direct wages, materials, energy,
transportation, depreciation and amortisation, etc. Such expenditures have been included in cost of sales and
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for 2017.

The expenditure incurred in mining activities of dolomite for the year ended 31 December 2017 were
approximately HK$16,345,000 while the expenditure incurred in exploration and development activities was
HK$ Nil.
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Serpentine Mine

The Group’s serpentine mine is situated in Donghai County, Jiangsu Province, the PRC. The mine is operated
by open-pit method, and therefore no additional exploration works are involved or required. Only simple
infrastructure works for open-pit mining are involved in the development activities, and no underground drilling
or structural works are involved. The serpentine mined is sold directly as metallurgical flux for iron and steel
smelting and is raw material for producing silicon magnesium fertilisers of the Group. The transportation cost
for raw material is relatively low due to the close proximity of the mine to the production base of the Group.

The resource/reserve of the Serpentine Mine was reported under the JORC system when it was acquired in
2010. As at 31 December 2017, the anticipated resource and reserve volumes were determined based on
the volume at the time of acquisition with the yearly reduction of quantity mined to calculate the remaining
resource and reserve volumes. There is no material change in the assumptions of estimation by the Group as
compared with those previously disclosed. The resource and reserve volumes was reviewed by the Group’s
internal geological experts. As compared with the state as at 31 December 2016, there was no material
change in the resource estimate and ore reserve of the serpentine mine.

For the two years ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the output of Serpentine Mine are as
follow:

Output (note) m 2016
Tonnes

Serpentine Mine 660,523 488,644

note:

Output is the stock-in-quantity from Serpentine Mine, including mine extraction for the year.

The expenditures incurred for 2017 in development activities were mainly for greening, environmental and
fire engineering and facilities and construction. Such expenditures have been capitalised and included in
the consolidated statement of financial position for 2017. The expenditures incurred in mining activities
were mainly for direct wages, materials, energy, transportation, depreciation and amortisation, etc. Such
expenditures have been included in cost of sales and charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income for 2017.

The expenditures incurred in development and mining activities of serpentine for the year ended 31 December
2017 were approximately HK$9,740,000 and HK$31,083,000 respectively while the expenditures incurred in
exploration were HK$ Nil.
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Key Risks and Uncertainties

Our Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and business prospects may be affected by a number
of risks and uncertainties directly or indirectly pertaining to our Group’s businesses. The followings are the
key risks and uncertainties identified by our Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to
those shown below which are not known to our Group or which may not be material now but could turn out
to be material in the future.

Market risks

Market risk is the risk that deteriorates profitability or affects ability to meet business objectives arising
from the movement in market demand, product prices, foreign exchange rates, and interest rates. The
management of our Group keeps continually monitoring these exposures closely to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner against such risks.

Exchange rate risk

The Group mainly operates in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Hong Kong and is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from primarily with respect to Renminbi, HK$, Singapore dollars, US$ and
Australian dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations. The Group does not presently hedge the foreign exchange
risks. The Group periodically reviews liquid assets and liabilities held in currencies other than HK$ to evaluate
its foreign exchange risk exposure and consider the usage of hedging instruments when necessary.

Interest rate risk

For interest-sensitive products and investments, our Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic
basis and considers managing this risk in a cost-effective manner when appropriate, through variety of
means.

Credit risk

The Group has always been aware of the credit risk exposure of our customers. The Group strictly followed
the “client account management procedures” established in 2004. The procedures required and ensured
that all clients were regularly assessed and be kept track of their transaction records and credit history. The
Group specified and assigned to each customer, as according to their operation and credit status, a series
of credit measures such as credit ratio, credit period, credit rating, credit terms and guarantee. The client
account management procedures were effective to control the credit risk of the Group.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the potential that our Group will be unable to meet its obligations when they fall due because
of an inability to obtain adequate funding or liquidate assets. In managing liquidity risk, our Group monitors
cash flows and maintains an adequate level of cash and cash equivalent to ensure the ability to finance the
Group’s operations and reduce the effects of fluctuation in cash flows.



Management Discussion and Analysis

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and
systems or from external events. Responsibility for managing operational risks basically rests with functional
departments of the Group and its subsidiaries. Key functions of the Group is to guide their standard operating
procedures, limits of authority and reporting framework. Our management will assess key operational
exposures and effect raised in business development regularly, implement relevant measures and improve the
internal control so that risk can be responsed and mitigated on a timely and effective manner.

Investment risk

Investment risk can be defined as the likelihood of extension of its return period relative to the expected
return or occurrence of losses on any particular investment attributable to changes of external factors. The
Group is well aware of importance of exploring various business opportunities and territories on a continual
basis, and also implement as the top agenda of the year. Key concern of projects investment framework will
be balancing risk and return across different investments, and thus risk assessment is a core aspect of the
investment decision process. Proper investment assessment and due diligence procedures have been set
up and detailed analysis will be made before approving investments. Regular updates on the progress of the
investments of our Group would be submitted to the Board.

Manpower and retention risk

Manpower risk means huge demand for talents because of the Group’s rapid business development while at
the same time facing severe competition over specialists from the industry and turnover of manpower. Our
Group may face the risk of not being able to recruit and retain key personnel and talents with appropriate and
required skills, experience and competence to cope with the expansion of business which would meet the
business objectives of our Group. Our Group will conduct a thorough analysis over its remuneration system,
as well as incentive mechanism and optimise the compensation structure so as to ensure remuneration
packages can align reasonably with market standard and maintain its competitiveness. Meanwhile, recruitment
channels are broadened and the talent pool of senior management are strengthened, so as to further enhance
the promotion opportunities and career path of employees. Systematic staff training are also being further
enhanced to increase the overall effectiveness of training and the dissemination of good corporate cultures.

Environmental Policies and Performance

Environmental policies and performance mainly means increasing attention of PRC government paid to
environmental rules and policies and more strict regulatory requirements. As subsidiaries and newly acquired
enterprises commenced into operation for a long while and lag behind certain environmental and duty
requirements promulgated by PRC government. The Group monitors impact on business development closely
raised from movements of environmental policy and external factors. Acting in an environmentally responsible
manner and performing social responsibilities, the Group is committed to improving and maintaining the
long term sustainability of the communities in which it operates. The Group endeavours to comply with laws
and regulations regarding environmental protection and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of
resources, energy saving and waste reduction. Green initiatives and measures have been adopted in daily
operation of the Group. Such initiatives include recycling of resources, energy saving measures and water
saving practices.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries in mainland China while the
Company is listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group’s operations accordingly shall comply with relevant
laws and regulations in mainland China and Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to
the date of this report, to the best of our knowledge, the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations in mainland China and Hong Kong, and there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations, which results significant loss and negative impacts by the Group.

Relationship with Employees and Key Stakeholders

The number of employees of the Group was approximately 4,680 (2015: 2,610) as at 31 December 2017.
The remuneration of employees was determined by the Group with reference to their performance, work
experience and current market conditions. Employee benefits include medical insurance, defined provident
fund scheme, discretionary bonus and employee share option scheme. There has been no labour dispute or
significant change in the number of employees that affect the normal operations of the Group. The Directors
believe that the Group maintains admirable relations with its employees.

Our Group understands that it is important to maintain good relationship with business partners, shareholders,
investors and banks to achieve its long-term goals. To keep up with our key stakeholders closely, the Group
has formulated corresponding scheme about investor relationship, and also holds tailored activities from time
to time, such as annual/extraordinary general meetings, on-site visits, seminars and road-shows. Accordingly,
our senior management have kept good communication, promptly exchanged ideas and shared business
latest update about development of the Group with them when appropriate. During the Year, there was no
material dispute between our Group and its business partners or banks.

Quarterly Voluntary Disclosure

From 2018 onwards, the Group will suspend the quarterly voluntary disclosure and will publish inside
information announcements on any significant changes of the Group for strictly compliance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules, so as to inform the market and investors timely.
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Executive Directors

CHI Wen Fu, aged 55, Chairman of the Group who is responsible for overall strategic planning and key
operating decisions. Mr. Chi started his law firm in Fuzhou in 1995, in which he was the Managing Partner.
Prior to that, Mr. Chi joined Fuzhou Justice Bureau Commerce Law Office after qualifying as a lawyer in the
PRC in 1989. In early 1998, Mr. Chi originated an initial research on organic agricultural production and
funded a R&D project on microbial compound fertilisers. Mr. Chi is a graduate of Chemical Analysis and Law.
Mr. Chi established the Group in 2000.

SHUM Sai Chit, aged 60, Chief Executive Officer of the Group who is responsible for business operations.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Shum was the Managing Director of Go Modern Limited which was principally
engaged in manufacturing of textile products and trading activities. In 1984, Mr. Shum joined Fujian Textiles
Import and Export Corporation as a Manager to oversee importing and exporting of textile products. Mr.
Shum is a graduate of Consumer Product Pricing and Statistics. Mr. Shum has joined the Group since
January 2002. Mr. Shum is currently an executive director of Group Sense (International) Limited (stock code:
601).

CHI Bi Fen, aged 59, Vice-President of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Chi was the Deputy
General Manager of an electronics equipment company over 17 years. She has an extensive experience in
accounting, taxation and finance in the PRC for more than 15 years. She is a graduate of Accounting and
Finance. Ms. Chi has joined the Group since March 2000. Ms. Chi is currently an executive director of Group
Sense (International) Limited (stock code: 601).

Non-Executive Director

GUO Mengyong, aged 59, is a Deputy General Manager of Fujian Changsheng Wireless Technology
Development Company Limited. He is responsible for electronic engineering technical management. Fujian
Changsheng Wireless Technology Development Company Limited is principally engaged in production of
electronic products and communication devices. Mr. Guo joined Fuzhou Capacitors Factory as a Technician
in 1976. From 1993 onwards, Mr. Guo worked at Fuzhou Meters Group Company as an Engineer and later
promoted to the Deputy Factory Manager in 1996, in charging of technical quality control. In 2000, Mr.
Guo joined Fujian Wireless Group Company as Deputy General Manager and was responsible for quality
management. He is a graduate of Industrial Enterprise Management. Mr. Guo has joined the Group since
February 2011.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

KWONG Ping Man, aged 53, Director of O’'Park Corporate Services Limited which provides corporate
advisory services. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Kwong served as the Chief Financial Officer of various
companies for almost 7 years. Mr. Kwong has over 15 years of experience in accounting, finance and
administration. He obtained a Master's Degree in Professional Accounting from Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a member of CPA Australia, fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries. Mr. Kwong is currently
an Independent Non-Executive Director of Tang Palace (China) Holdings Limited (stock code: 1181), Group
Sense (International) Limited (stock code: 601), Royal Deluxe Holdings Limited (stock code: 3789) and Dragon
King Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8493).

SHENG Hong, aged 55, Director of Hadrian Manufacturing (Asia) Limited and Director of Operations
and General Manager of Hadrian (Shanghai) Trading Limited. The Hadrian Group is principally engaged
in production and sales of metal partitions and lockers. Mr. Sheng has over 20 years of experience in
management of corporation and investment. He was employed by China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited from 1986 to 1996. Mr. Sheng holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Engineering Mechanics from Tongji
University, Shanghai.

Lau Chi Kit, aged 73, an executive director of Chinlink International Holdings Limited (stock code: 997).
He retired from The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (“HSBC”) in December 2000
after more than 35 years of service. Among the major positions in HSBC, he was the assistant general
manager and head of Personal Banking Hong Kong and assistant general manager and head of Strategic
Implementation, Asia- Pacific Region. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers (“Institute”). He
was the chairman of the Institute’s Executive Committee (from January 1999 to December 2000). He is
currently the honorary advisor of the Institute’s Executive Committee. He served as a member on a number
of committees appointed by the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, including the
Advisory Council on the Environment (from October 1998 to December 2001), the Advisory Committee
on Human Resources Development in the Financial Services Sector (from June 2000 to May 2001), the
Corruption Prevention Advisory Committee of the Independent Commission Against Corruption (from January
2000 to December 2003), the Environment and Conservation Fund Committee (from August 2000 to October
2006), the Innovation and Technology Fund (Environment) Projects Vetting Committee (from January 2000 to
December 2004) and the Law Reform Commission’s Privacy Sub-committee (from February 1990 to March
2006). He also served as chairman of the Business Environment Council Limited (from September 1998 to
December 2001). Currently, he is also an independent non-executive director of Royale Furniture Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1198), Leoch International Technology Limited (stock code: 842), Janco Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8035) and Hin Sang Group (International) Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 6893).

Company Secretary

LUK Sai Wai, Simon, aged 54, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Luk is
responsible for financial, management accounting and secretarial affairs of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Luk was appointed as financial controller for several listed companies in Hong Kong. He has
over 20 years of experience in finance and management. Mr. Luk holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Business
Administration from Hong Kong Baptist University and a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from
University of Strathclyde. He is a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and a member of
Society of Registered Financial Planners, Hong Kong. Mr. Luk has joined the Group since May 2010.
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Senior Management

NGAN Sau Fung Joseph aged 60, Managing Director of the Group. Mr. Ngan is responsible for corporate
finance and investor relations management, and also participates in risk management and strategic planning
of the Group. Mr. Ngan has over 30 years of experience in the financial industry, which includes working at
The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, the Allied Banking Corporation, and DBS Bank
(Hong Kong) Limited, in the foreign exchange and treasury businesses, corporate and retail banking, payment
and cash management, as well as credit and risk management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ngan was the
Managing Director of DBS Bank (Hong Kong), and was in charge of its enterprise banking business. Mr. Ngan
has joined the Group since March 2017.

WANG Yongxiang, aged 49, Senior Engineer of the Group, is responsible for the management and business
planning in fertilizer and ore business operations of the Group . Mr. Wang majored in planning and surveying
of mining industry with over 20 years of experience in agricultural fertilisers production and mining. Prior to
joining the Group, he was the Production Technician and Engineer at Donghai serpentine mine in Jiangsu
Province, and the Head of Sulfuric Acid factory. Mr. Wang has joined the Group since 2007.

MAO Huayin, aged 45, is responsible for business affairs and trade management for the fertiliser of the
Group. Mr. Mao holds a Master’s Degree, majored in the Economics Management. As a senior economist, he
has more than 20 years of experience in marketing and corporate management. Mr. Mao joined the Group in
February 2015.

HU Jie, aged 48, is responsible for fertiliser production and operation management of the Group. Mr. Hu
studied in mechatronics, and has over 20 years of experience in the fertilizer industries. He has served in
various positions, such asthe Head of fertiliser factory, the General Manager of the production technology
department, the Head of the main chemical factory and the General Manager of the purchasing and branding
department. Mr. Hu has joined the Group since 2007.

ZHOU Jianhui, aged 45, is responsible for the safety environment management of the Fertilizer Base of the
Group. Mr. Zhou majored in agriculture with over 20 years of experience in agricultural fertilisers industries,
and has served in various positions, such as the Head of Fertiliser factory and company General Manager.
Mr. Zhou has joined the Group since 2007.

CHI Jing Chao, aged 35, Chief Corporate Affairs Officer of the Group who is responsible for the overall
corporate activities. Mr. Chi has 10 years of experience in corporate affairs. Mr. Chi is a graduate of Financial
and Administrative Management. Mr. Chi has joined the Group since August 2004.

LEE Man Ching, aged 38, Assistant to Chairman of the Group. Ms. Lee has over 10 years of experience
in human resources and administrative management. Ms. Lee holds a Bachelor’ s Degree in Accountancy
and a Master’ s Degree in Corporate Governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is a fellow
member of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and an associate member of Hong Kong Institute
of Company Secretaries. Ms. Lee has joined the Group since August 2004.

L102 LHOd3YH TVNNNV %2102



38

CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

LB AEEZERERAF

SHEREE

Corporate Governance Report

ARRBAREBRRFT KPR EREL
BHE - BFEHE RUGEE A TMEREE
ERREUERKREEEL  MARKARRAZEH
HRETRIFER -

EEERESRTR

R2017FE2F  ARRBETHIMESL™
MANT ETARA DK SR 14FTE 2 B EE AT
([EERTA ) REEEARE ZTFANE
AT REEBERREEEEENERBRIN

(a) WBETAEXFEEAI21E BT HFAL
FERREFAE HREZTEEFEMAXE
HAER2017F5 A26 HEAH = » e
FHBERZERTZRERFRE - AA
RAZITRBHEZNTES LEREEED D
fE B R R A F K AR R REEMA -

(b) WRBTEEXEAGTIE  BIUEHITES
MEMERTESALEREAS I
BEZERAEALENER - ERTTEED
ABEEERANEMEETFE201745 A4
260 ~2017F 11 A21 8 K&20174 128
ARBBITHRERE  MBIYENTES
R EERRA N EMEENE 201745
B26H K2017FE12 B4 B &£ 1TMHRE X
T MBMIERTEERMASETAAL
EmaEsE S E 201745 A 26 HETHME
N

The Company is committed to achieve and maintain high
standards of corporate governance and business integrity.
The Board believes that good corporate governance will
not only improve management accountability and investors
confidence, but will lay a good foundation for the long-term
development of the Company.

Code on Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year of 2017, the Company has complied
with the code provision as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) and Corporate
Governance Report under Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) except for the following deviations as
explained below with considered reasons:

(@) Under code provision E.1.2, the Chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr.
Chi Wen Fu, the chairman of the Board was unable
to attend the annual general meeting held on 26 May
2017 as he was obliged to be away for a business
trip. Mr. Shum Sai Chit, chief executive officer and
executive Director of the Company, attended the said
annual general meeting to respond to queries from
shareholders.

(o) Under code provision A.6.7, independent non-
executive Directors and other non-executive Directors
should also attend general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
Mr. Guo Mengyong (being a non-executive Director)
was unable to attend the general meetings held on 26
May 2017, 21 November 2017 and 4 December 2017,
Mr. Kwong Ping Man (being an independent non-
executive Director) was unable to attend the general
meetings held on 26 May 2017 and 4 December 2017
while Mr. Sheng Hong (being an independent non-
executive Director) was unable to attend the general
meeting held on 26 May 2017 as they were obliged to
be away for business trips.
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The Board

The Group is governed by the Board which is responsible
for strategic leadership and overall supervision of the
Group. The Board exercises a number of authorities which
include:

—  Formulating the Group’s overall strategies

— Monitoring and controlling operational and financial
performance

— Formulating strategies for risk management

— Reviewing effectiveness of internal control system

— Approving financial results and public announcements

— Approving annual operating budgets

— Approving major acquisitions or disposals and capital
projects

— Reviewing and approving major investments and
material borrowings

—  Setting dividend policy

—  Approving appointment of Directors

—  Setting the Group’s remuneration policies

The Board is also responsible for performing the functions
set out in code provision D.3.1. The Board will meet to
develop, review and monitor the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, to review and monitor
training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, to review and monitor
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, to develop, review
and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to employees and Directors and to review the
compliance of the Company with the CG Code and the
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

During the year of 2017, in relation to the corporate
governance functions, the Board has reviewed the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and the
regulatory and statutory requirements, and the disclosure in
the corporate governance report.

During 2017, the Chairman had met the non-executive
Director and the independent non-executive Directors
respectively and individually without the presence of other
executive Directors.
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Board Composition

The Board comprises 7 Directors in which 3 are
executive Directors; 1 is non-executive Director and 3
are independent non-executive Directors. The number of
independent non-executive Directors constitutes more than
one-third of the Board. The composition of the Board as at
the date of this report and their profiles are set out on page
35 and page 36 of the annual report respectively.

The Board delegates powers to executive Directors for the
day-to-day management of the Group and the implementation
of major strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board
whereas executive Directors should provide such explanations
and information to the Board in a timely manner to enable the
Board to monitor the performance of management.

Non-executive Director brings in valuable expertise and
experience to the Company and serves important functions
as well as provides strategic advices to the management.

Independent non-executive Directors ensure that the
Board is accountable for the interest of all shareholders
and handles matters in an objective manner. The 3
independent non-executive Directors have brought a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for efficient and effective
delivery of its functions. The Board has received from each
independent non-executive Director an annual confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

Mr. Chi Wen Fu and Ms. Chi Bi Fen have a family relationship
of brother and sister. Mr. Guo Mengyong is a brother-in-
law of Mr. Chi Wen Fu. Save as disclosed, there is no other
relationship among members of the Board.

Upon reviewing (i) the directorships and major commitments
of each Director; and (ii) the attendance rate of each
Director at the meetings of the Board and its committees,
the Board is satisfied that all Directors have spent sufficient
time in performing their responsibilities during 2017.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against Directors.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

The chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company are Mr. Chi Wen Fu and Mr. Shum Sai Chit
respectively. The roles of chairman and the chief executive
of the Company are separate and exercised by two
separate individuals.

Appointment and Re-election

Any potential new Directors, being individuals who
are suitably qualified and expected to make a positive
contribution to the performance of the Board, will be
identified by the existing Directors and the Nomination
Committee and submitted to the Board for approval.

In accordance with the articles of association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting of the Company,
one-third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation
and every Director shall be subject to retirement at least
once every 3 years. Mr. Chi Wen Fu, Mr. Shum Sai Chit and
Mr. Kwong Ping Man shall retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company, but being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Each of the non-executive Director and the independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Guo Mengyong, Mr.
Kwong Ping Man, Mr. Sheng Hong and Mr. Lau Chi Kit, has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
a fixed term of 2 years commencing from 1 March 2017, 1
March 2017, 1 March 2017 and 1 April 2018 respectively,
subject to the provisions of retirement and rotation of
Directors under the articles of association of the Company
and save that either such Director or the Company may
terminate the appointment by giving at least 3 months’ prior
written notice. Annual emoluments payable to independent
non-executive Directors and non-executive Director will be
reviewed according to their estimated time to be spent on
the Company’s matters and their working experience with
the Company.
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All existing executive Directors are entitled to a fixed
remuneration per annum respectively. In addition, each
executive Director is also entitled to a discretionary
management bonus calculated as a percentage of the
audited consolidated net profit of the Group attributable to
the owners of the Company (after tax and non-controlling
interests and the payment of such management bonuses
but before extraordinary and exceptional items), which
percentage shall be determined by the Board provided
that the aggregate amount of the bonuses payable to
all executive Directors in respect of each financial year
of the Company shall not exceed 5% of such net profit.
The remuneration of each executive Director is subject to
the annual review of the Board with reference to his/her
contribution in terms of time, effort and his/her expertise.

Details of remuneration paid to each of the Directors and
senior management during the year are disclosed in Note
13 to the financial statements.

All Directors are entitled to be reimbursed for reasonable
expenses incurred during the performance of their duties to
the Company and are eligible for share options under the
share option scheme of the Company.
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Board Processes

The Board is accountable to the shareholders and leads
the Group in an ethical, responsible and effective manner.
The Board meets on a regular basis and arranges ad-hoc
meetings for any specific matters that may arise.

The Board met 4 times in 2017. The attendance of
individual Directors at Board meetings, committee meetings
and general meetings is set out in the following table:

FEE/RT28%
Attended/held
ReZEees TMZEgeE
Nomination ~ Remuneration
Committee Gommittee
Meetings Meetings

HEYN-
Audit
Committee
Meetings

General
Meetings

44 - 11 - 013
44 - - 11 3/3
44 - - - 03
44 - - - 03
44 5/5 11 11 1/3
44 5/5 11 11 2/3
44 5/5 - 11 3/3

FENEMNEEEXHEREFTeZEERR
BRARTEEES TR TRIIKEKNEE
Ble- EFEANEFEERLURERRT AN
NEERFERIFLRE - MEBRRAEENE
EZeHERERREEAZEERANEFHR
BERFEERABEERTESERHR 2 AMIEN
EERBRZTAEHE -

Agendas and the accompanying board papers are
circulated in full to all Directors at least 3 days before the
Board or committee meeting. Board decisions will then be
resolved either by vote at Board meetings or by written
resolutions. If a substantial shareholder or a Director has
a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the
Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather
than a written resolution.
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Minutes of the Board meetings and meetings of the
Board committees taken by the company secretary of the
Company and, together with any supporting papers, are
available for inspection to all Directors. The minutes record
the matters discussed by the Board or its committees,
the decisions made and any concerns or dissenting views
raised by the Directors.

If a Director has a conflict of interests in relation to a
transaction or proposal to be considered by the Board,
such Director is required to declare his/her interest and
abstain from voting. Such matter shall be considered at a
Board meeting by Directors who have no material interest in
the transaction or proposal.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous
Professional Development

On appointment to the Board, each Director would receive
an induction package covering the Group’s business and
the statutory and regulatory obligations of a director of a
listed company. The Group also regularly updates Directors
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable legal and regulatory requirements regarding
subjects necessary for performing their duties. In addition,
the Company has been encouraging and offering to pay
for Directors to attend seminars on the latest development
of applicable laws, rules and regulations so that they can
continuously update and further improve their relevant
knowledge and skills.
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According to the records provided by the Directors, the
training received by each of the Directors during the
period from 1 January 2017 up to 31 December 2017 is
summarised as follows:

HESERR
sEHIEE
Type of

continuous
professional
development
training "ot

HITES Executive Directors
MY = Chi Wen Fu B
SL R Shum Sai Chit B
M E L Chi Bi Fen B
FHITES Non-Executive Director
Eilge Guo Mengyong B
BUFHITES Independent Non-Executive Directors
BB IR Kwong Ping Man A, B
B Sheng Hong B
2155 4t Lau Chi Kit B
5T notes:
A HEEBEREIIRE A:  Attending seminar(s) or training session(s)
B: MERE -  TWEREBAARAREKNKEEFHENR B: Reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the

B LPRAEEMEREERERTERSE
77 H B B A R

Company’s business or directors’ duties and responsibilities,
the latest development of the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements etc.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for implementing business strategies and management of
the daily operations of the Group to the senior management
who is required to report back to the Board. Functions
reserved to the Board and the management are reviewed
periodically. The Board and each individual Director is
empowered to access any Company’s information from
senior management and the company secretary at all times.
The Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major
changes that may affect the Group’s businesses, including
amendments on relevant rules and regulations. During the
year, Directors are provided with monthly updates on the
Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge
their duties. Directors are allowed to seek independent
professional advice in performing their duties at the
Company’s expense, but no request was made by any
Director for such independent professional advice in 2017.

The Board monitors and reviews performance of the
management based on several key performance indicators
such as financial figures, investor relations, corporate
governance and internal control. The principal measures
include review of management accounts, review of
internal or external auditor reports and feedbacks from
stakeholders.

Board Diversity Policy

During the year, the Board has implemented a board
diversity policy which has been effective since 1 September
2013. The Company seeks to achieve board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural background and ethnicity, in addition to educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 7
Directors. Among which, one of them is a woman, one
of them is a non-executive Director and three of them
are independent non-executive Directors. The Directors
are of diverse educational background and possess a
wide spectrum of professional qualifications and business
experience. The Board is of significant diversity, whether
considered in terms of gender, professional and educational
background and skills.

Code of Conduct Regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (“Model Code”) as the
code of conduct of the Company regarding Directors’
securities transactions. The Company made specific
enquiries to all Directors and all Directors have confirmed in
writing that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code during the year.

Board’s Committees

To assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board
has established audit committee (the “Audit Committee”),
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”),
and nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”).
These committees function within clearly defined terms
of reference. Independent non-executive Directors play
a significant role in these committees to ensure that
independent and objective views are taken.

The terms of reference of these committees are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently consists of Mr. Kwong
Ping Man (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Sheng
Hong and Mr. Lau Chi Kit, who are all independent non-
executive Directors. All committee members possess
appropriate qualifications such as accounting and financial
management.

The Audit Committee met 5 times in 2017 to review with
the senior management and external auditors the Group’s
significant internal controls and financial matters as set out
in the Audit Committee’s terms of reference. The functions
of the Audit Committee include the following matters:

— Reviewing the Group’s financial statements with
recommendation to the Board for approval

— Reviewing the Group’s compliance of the regulatory
and statutory requirements

— Reviewing the Group’s internal control and risk
management

— Reviewing significant accounting and audit issues

— Reviewing the Group’s connected transactions

— Overseeing and managing the relationship with
external auditors

The Audit Committee has power to conduct investigations
into any matter within the scope of responsibility of the
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is authorised
to obtain independent professional advice if it deems
necessary for discharging its responsibilities. The Audit
Committee has obtained a written confirmation from the
auditors on their independence and objectivity as required
under the Section 290 (revised) of the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants issued by Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants prior to the commencement of
the audit of the Company’s financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017.
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During the year, the Audit Committee has carried out
the above functions in the respective Audit Committee
meetings and also has been satisfied with the review of
the audit scope, process, effectiveness and independence
of the auditors. The Audit Committee has reviewed and
recommended to the Board for approval of the interim
and annual financial statements for 2017. There was no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the re-appointment of the auditors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises 4
members, namely Mr. Kwong Ping Man (chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and independent non-executive
Director), Mr. Shum Sai Chit (executive Director), Mr. Sheng
Hong (independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Lau Chi
Kit (independent non-executive Director).

The functions of the Remuneration Committee are to
formulate transparent procedures for setting remuneration
policies and packages for Directors and the senior
management of the Group. Its duties include:

— Reviewing and recommending to the Board the
remuneration packages of individual executive and
non- executive Directors and the senior management
of the Group

— Reviewing the administration of the share option
scheme of the Company

— Reviewing the appropriateness of compensation for
Directors and the senior management of the Group

No Director is involved in determining his/her own
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee met once in
2017 to review the existing remuneration policies of the
Directors and senior management.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises 3 members,
namely, Mr. Chi Wen Fu (chairman of the Nomination
Committee and executive Director), Mr. Kwong Ping Man
(independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Sheng Hong
(independent non-executive Director).

Its duties include:

— Reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board

— Recommending any change to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategies

— ldentifying capable and qualified individuals to become
Board members

— Assessing independence of independent non-executive
Directors

—  Making recommendation on appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors

The Nomination Committee met once in 2017 for reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendation to the Board regarding change of roles
of board members and re-appointment of retiring Directors
at the forthcoming annual general meeting, assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

In carrying out the responsibility for identifying suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board, the
Nomination Committee will give adequate consideration to
the board diversity policy.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

The Company had appointed HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited as the independent auditors of the Group. Apart
from audit services, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
also provided non-audit services during the year. For the
year of 2017, the provisions of non-audit services mainly
include professional services for professional review.

The following principles are considered when determining
the appointment of the auditors in non-audit services:

— No management decision made by the auditors
— Independence of the auditors not to be impaired
—  Quality of service

—  Cost of service

The Board was authorised in the annual general meeting to
determine the remuneration of the independent auditors.

The remuneration paid/payable by the Group to the
independent auditors for the year of 2017 are as follows:

FTHERT

HK$’000

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

FEiz M EZEB RS Audit and audit related services 4,387
BT Z R Non-audit services 184
FEE2 Total 4,571

AFEEZEBEMBEFEAMEHEMBERIAE
%o BEHEREERETZRRAFAE LE
e BREBECAESEES  RASR1TZ
BRERBFRE LBRZEERESAMEBAER
NCIVERANC R 3 i

The accounts for the year were audited by HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire
upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. The Audit
Committee has recommended to the Board that HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited be re-appointed as the
auditors of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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Respective Responsibilities of Directors and
Auditors

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparation of the financial statements for each financial
period, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and its subsidiaries and in compliance with
the requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Listing Rules.

The auditors acknowledge their responsibilities in the
auditors’ report as set out on pages 71 to 81 of the annual
report.

Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to establish,
maintain and review the effectiveness of the Group’s system
of internal controls and risk management with a view to
ensuring that shareholders’ investments and the Group’s
assets are safeguarded. Such system is designated to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. This responsibility is primarily fulfilled on its behalf by
the Audit Committee. In the year under review, the Audit
Committee, as delegated by the Board, has reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group,
covering all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions.

The foundation of a strong system of internal control is
a solid control environment. This is dependent on the
following components:

— Business ethics and culture of the organisation
— Quality and competence of its personnel

—  Direction provided by the Board, and

—  Effectiveness of the management
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Risk Management

The Group improves its business and operational activities
by identifying the areas of significant business risks via a
regular review and taking appropriate measures to control
and mitigate these risks. The management of the Group
reviews all significant control policies and procedures and
highlights all significant matters to the Board and Audit
Committee.

The implementation of risk management of the Group
was assisted by the Group’s internal audit department
so that the Group could ensure new and emerging risks
relevant to the Group’s operation are promptly identified
by management, assess the adequacy of action plans
to manage these risks and monitor and evaluate the
effectiveness of the action plans. These are on-going
processes and our Audit Committee reviews the Group’s
risk management systems periodically.

Audit committee reported to the Board the implementation
of the Group’s risk management and internal control policy
which, among other things, included the determination
of risk factors, evaluation of risk level the Group could
endure and effectiveness of risk management measures.
Based on the reports from the Group’s internal control
department and the Audit Committee, the Board considers
the Group’s risk management and internal control system
is adequate and effective and the Group has complied with
the provisions on risk management and internal controls as
set out in the CG code.
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Procedures and Internal Controls for
Handling and Dissemination of Inside
Information

The Group complies with requirements of Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) and the Listing Rules. The
Group discloses inside information to the public as soon
as reasonably practicable unless the information falls within
any of the safe harbours as provided in the SFO. Before
the information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group
ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the
Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality
cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may have
been breached, the Group would immediately disclose the
information to the public. The Group is committed to ensure
that information contained in announcements or circulars
is not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false or
misleading through the omission of a material fact in view of
presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which
requires equal disclosure of both positive and negative
facts.

Communication with Shareholders and
Investor Relations

The Company recognises the importance of open
communication and fair disclosure. It is the Company’s
policy to ensure that all shareholders are equally informed
of all major corporate developments.

All shareholders have proper notice of any general meeting
of the Company at which the Directors and the committees’
members are available to give explanation on any query
raised by the shareholders. Major information of the
Company could be obtained from the Company’s website
or financial reports and circulars sent to the shareholders.
Any enquiries by the shareholders requiring the Board’s
attention can also be sent in writing to the Investor
Relations Manager of the Company whose contact details
are set out in the paragraph headed “Shareholders’ Rights
— (c) Right to Put Enquiries to the Board” below.
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Resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of the
Company shall be decided on a poll, save that the chairman
of the meeting may in good faith allow a resolution which
relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to
be voted by a show of hands. Procedures for conducting
a poll will be explained to the shareholders at each general
meeting and questions from shareholders regarding the
voting procedures will be answered. The poll results will
be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively in the manner prescribed under the
Listing Rules.

As part of a regular program of investor relations, senior
executives may hold briefings or road shows after the
results announcement and attend conferences with
institutional investors and analysts to engage in two-way
communications on the Company’s performance, objectives
and developments. Company visits can be arranged by the
Company upon specific request.

Shareholders’ Rights

(a) Right to Convene Extraordinary General

Meeting

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company,
any one or more members holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the
meeting, signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposit
it to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company at the Company’s head office and principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Suite 1104, 11th
Floor, Tower 6, The Gateway, 9 Canton Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong, and such request
may consist of several documents in like form, each
signed by one or more of the requisitionist(s).
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(b)

The request will be verified with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong and upon
the confirmation of the branch share registrar that
the request is in order, the company secretary of
the Company will ask the Board to convene an
extraordinary general meeting by serving sufficient
notice in accordance with all relevant statutory and
regulatory requirements to all registered members. On
the contrary, if the request is verified as not in order,
the requisitionist(s) will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, an extraordinary general meeting will not
be convened as requested.

If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself/themselves may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Right to Put Forward Proposals at General

Meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to
propose new resolutions at general meetings under
the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the articles of
association of the Company. Shareholders who wish
to propose a resolution may request the Company to
convene an extraordinary general meeting following
the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

As regard the procedures for proposing a person for
election as a Director, please refer to the procedures
made available on the website of the Company at
www.centurysunshine.com.hk.
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(c) Right to Put Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing for the attention of
Investor Relations Manager of the Company whose
contact details are as follows:

Suite 1104, 11th Floor,

Tower 6, The Gateway,

9 Canton Road,

Tsim Sha Tsui,

Kowloon,

Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2802 2697

Email: ir@centurysunshine.com.hk

The Investor Relations Manager of the Company shall
forward the shareholders’ enquiries and concerns
to the Board and/or relevant committees of the
Board to answer the shareholders’ questions where
appropriate.

Company Secretary

Mr. Luk Sai Wai, Simon is an employee of the Company
and has been appointed as the company secretary of the
Company with effect from 1 May 2010. The biographical
details of Mr. Luk are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management Profile”.

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Luk has

taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

Constitutional documents

There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2017, which are set out
on pages 82 to 220.

Principal Activities and Geographical
Analysis of Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The activities and other particulars of its principal
subsidiaries are shown under Note 23 to the financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance by operating
segments is set out in Note 8 to the financial statements.
During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the
Group mainly operated in the PRC and the Group’s revenue
are mainly derived from the PRC and non-current assets of
the Group are mainly located in the PRC as at 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2016. No analysis of the Group’s
result and assets by geographical area is disclosed.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on pages 82 to 83.

The directors of the Company do not recommend the

payment of any dividend for the year ended 31 December
2017.

Business Review

A business review of the Group is set out on pages 23 to 25
of the annual report.

Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last 5 financial years is set out on pages 6 to 7 of
the annual report.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in Note 17 to the financial
statements.

Investment Properties

Details of the movements in investment properties of the
Group are set out in Note 18 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
are set out in Note 41 to the financial statements.

Equity Linked Agreements

(a) Share options granted to directors and

selected employees

For share options granted, exercised and lapsed
during the year ended 31 December 2017, details are
set out in Note 43 of the financial statements and the
section named “Share Option Scheme” contained in
this Directors’ Report.

(b) Exchangeable Bonds

During the year ended 31 December 2016,
redeemable fixed coupon exchangeable bonds in the
principal amount of HK$232,000,000 were issued by
the Company, which can be exchanged for ordinary
shares of an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company. However, the option to exchange
was lapsed during the year ended 31 December
2017. Details are set out in Note 38 of the financial
statements.
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Listed Subordinated Notes

On 4 June 2015 and 3 August 2015, the Company issued
listed subordinated notes (under the Multicurrency Medium
Term Note Programme) with the face value of SGD75
million and SGD50 million respectively, totalling SGD125
million. The notes carry a fixed coupon rate of 7.2% and
are listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange maturing on 4
June 2018.

The 7.2% subordinated notes were fully redeemed in June
2017 before maturity.

On 5 June 2017, the Company issued listed subordinated
notes (under the Multicurrency Medium Term Note
Programme) with the face value of SGD101.75 million. The
note carries a coupon rate of 7.0% and are listed on the
Singapore Stock Exchange and will mature on 3 July 2020.

Details of the listed subordinated notes outstanding as at
31 December 2017 are set out in Note 35 of the financial
statement.

Reserves

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and of
the Company during the year are set out in consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 86 and Note 42(b)
to the financial statements respectively.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2017 amounted to HK$1,406,414 (2016: HK$1,436,801,000).

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the
Cayman lIslands, which would oblige the Company to offer
new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

During the year 2016, the Company repurchased
11,510,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each of the
Company at an aggregate consideration of HK$4,210,950
before expenses at prices ranging from HK$0.345
to HK$0.395 per share on the Stock Exchange. The
repurchased shares were cancelled on 26 February 2016.

During the year 2017, the Company repurchased
16,860,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each of the
Company at an aggregate consideration of HK$4,081,655
before expenses at prices ranging from HK$0.223
to HK$0.265 per share on the Stock Exchange. The
repurchased shares were cancelled on 31 July 2017.

Accordingly, the issued share capital of the Company was
reduced by the nominal value thereof. The premium payable
on repurchase was charged against the share premium
account of the Company. The repurchases were effected by
the Board pursuant to the mandate from shareholders, with
a view to benefit shareholders as a whole in enhancing the
net assets and earnings per share of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year and up to the
date of the annual report.
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Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of the
annual report are:

Executive Directors
Chi Wen Fu (Chairman)
Shum Sai Chit (CEO)
Chi Bi Fen

Non-Executive Director
Guo Mengyong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Kwong Ping Man

Sheng Hong

Lau Chi Kit

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Chi Wen Fu, Mr. Shum Sai Chit and Mr.
Kwong Ping Man will retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
its parent company was a party and in which a Director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

During the year, none of the Directors or the management
shareholders of the Company or their respective associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a
business that competed or might compete with the
business of the Group.

Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to Article 167 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities
which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of
the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto, and no
Director shall be liable for any loss, damages or misfortune
which may happen to or be incurred by the Company in the
execution of the duties of his office or in relation thereto.

A Directors liability insurance is currently in place, and was
in place during the year, to protect the Directors of the
Company against potential costs and liabilities arising from
claims brought against them.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management
are set out on pages 35 to 37 of the annual report.

Share Option Scheme

In order to attract and retain the best quality employees
for the development of the Group’s businesses and to
provide additional incentives or rewards to selected
qualifying participants, the Company adopted a share
option scheme on 3 December 2008 (the “Scheme”). The
qualifying participants mainly include employees of the
Group, Directors and contractors, suppliers or service
providers of the Group who have contribution to the Group.
The Scheme, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years since its establishing date.
The remaining life of the Scheme is approximately 1 years
(expiry on 3 December 2018).
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R2017F12A481H  ARaEESHETETT
BAERARRSEMEERZE(EE RES
NEEHRAN(TEERBEEN ) EXVE) 2K
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EEERRERNT

The subscription price is not less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on the date of offer of the option; (ii) the
average closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer of the option; and
(iii) the nominal value of a Share of HK$0.02. The maximum
number of Shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme shall not, in aggregate, exceed
30% of the issued share capital of the Company from
time to time. Upon acceptance of the offer for the grant of
option, an amount of HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee to
the Company.

The Company can issue options so that the total number
of shares that may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Scheme does not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the date of approval
of the Scheme. The Company may refresh this 10% limit at
any time, subject to shareholders’ approval and the issue of
a circular and in accordance with the Listing Rules provided
that the number of shares to be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes does not
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

As at 31 December 2017, options to subscribe for a total
of 33,334,769 Shares were outstanding under the Scheme
(the “Options”) (2016: 132,679,714 Shares). Details of the
movements in the options are set out in note 43 to the
financial statements.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interest
in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company and Any
Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2017, the relevant interests and short
positions of the Directors or chief executive of the Company
in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ”), as recorded in the register to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO were as
follows:
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(i) EERELQRZER (i) Directors’ Interests in the Company
BRORERERE Long Positions in Shares and Share Options

BART

R2017%

REBRE 12A31H
G| BRTRA

) 2B
Percentage

of issued share

Number of capital of the

BRRGEA

Number of Shares held

EEpg BAES EREg: ARER Options Company as at

Personal Spouse Corporate held 31 December
Name of Director interests interests interests (note 2) 2017
BXE(EE]) 237,235,548 - 1341871364  1579,106,912 34.47%
Chi Wen Fu (“Mr. Chi") (1) (note 1) - -
Lt 14,666,305 - - 14,666,305 0.32%
Shum Sai Chit - _
NLEPS 12,352,499 - - 12,352,499 0.27%
Chi Bi Fen - _
PEE 2,625,000 - - 2,625,000 0.06%
Guo Mengyong - -
BAX - - - - -
Kwong Ping Man - -
s 1,775,000 - - 1,775,000 0.04%
Sheng Hong - -
Lau Chi Kit 6,389,145 0.14%
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(i) EFRE (ii) Long position in debentures
EENA B EntE FrisE# <58
Name of director Capacity/Nature of interest Amount of debentures held
37 03 7T
SGD
it [EPNG: 2 2,500,000
Mr. Chi Personal interest
M5E - notes:

ZERMMTEREERAR([BEFE - &
W ERFEBEEEITIRAB3.74% « HRILHE
FTRREERRAG LITEREHITR=02—
FALEZRFRE - B RR SRR ©

BB A0M4F7TAI0BHZEHERE
Bl EAARRAEFEREMNTE  BARQA
549,280,000 % f% 17 (#8 & 7201546 A30H
RRBDBEITERAL12%) BIFLEEE SR A A
([EEerAall)  EABEBEBESARFA L
MALZGEBEBRXER RN 2014F5A30H
$2(R2015F12 B 7THEEEREY)HNER
e 2 I dn o

These Shares are held by Alpha Sino International Limited
(“Alpha Sino”) and are deemed corporate interests by virtue
of Mr. Chi’s holding of 83.74% of the issued share capital
of Alpha Sino which entitled him to exercise or control the
exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general
meeting of Alpha Sino.

As pursuant to a share mortgage agreement dated 10
July 2014, Alpha Sino, being the substantial shareholder
of the Company, had mortgaged 549,280,000 Shares
(representing approximately 12% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at 30 June 2015) to International Finance
Corporation (“IFC”) as security for a loan agreement dated
30 May 2014 (as amended and restated on 7 December
2015) entered into between IFC and Baishan City Tianan
Magnesium Resources Co. Ltd.

2. WAZBREZFBEHIIN X ERESE]— Details of Options held are set out in the above section
g o headed “Share Options Scheme”.
B EXXPT#EEE &SN R2017F 12318 ° &KX Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none

NAZEFHRETBTHABABRFZTAZIHEA
T BERARFAREMEAEEZE(EERRE
7R EERGIEXVER) 2 Bty ~ HRERD HEH
REA BN AR BIREE 7 kI E &P 352
FEEzECMAZABERRESR

of the Directors or chief executive of the Company or their
respective associates had interests and short positions
in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of SFO.

CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

tHEEXEEERER AR
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F12A31H  RARABRMNABETETED
HERDBEARIEESF R BAEEHE 336 1EHE
AREFNECMOEIRNEEMNALTOT

BRRHEE/EHB

Name of shareholder

X E kB
Chi Wen Fu Long position
HE RE
Alpha Sino Long position
BEI RE
Yang Yuchuan Long position
2l ke
Zou Li Long position
Best Equity RE

Long position
BT R A kB
International Finance Long position
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders in the Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of
the Company, as at 31 December 2017, persons who had
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
shares of equity derivatives of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

HAATR2017 F

12 831 HERTRAE

2B

Percentage

of issued share

BERGKEAR BEEEREZE capital of the
Number of Number of Company as at
Shares held Options held 31 December 2017

1,5679,106,912 34.47%
(Mi5E1) (note 1)

1,341,871,364 29.29%
(F3¥4) (note 4)

351,844,434 7.68%
(Mi#E3) (note 3)

309,914,999 6.77%
(BF5E2) (note 2)

309,914,999 6.77%

793,526,275 17.32%
(F§7E4) (note 4)
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i

A

N

X ERERARQA A £1,579,106,912 %
fE 1 R B & 2 (a) 237,235,548 % %
BT HEESEA YUEREEZER: K(b)
1,341,871,364 IR iR (h Th E RN E A B ED 1T
fRZAN83.74% « UL T EBE N IR BERR K
CEITFESRIEEITE=Z s 2 — I IR EREM
WRBNBIHER -

MR B A2014F7H10H 2B HEFE
Bl EAARAEEREMNTE  BARQF
549,280,000 % f% 17 (18 & 7201546 AS0H
RRRDEITERAL12%) KIFEEE SR AR
(TEREerAR]) EARBEERSRARFAL
MALCEBHERERRAFN2014F5830H
HEZ(R2015F 12 A7THEBEREY)MER
e 2 I dn o

ZER M T ERE A Best Equity B3 1TIRA
52.83% ' &L T E 4 ) ] 7 Best Equity A% 3
RE EITFESEHTE=D 2 — A E 2R ERE
MRS AR BIE ©

B % & & MN2013FE7A1H 2201648 A4
BHEIARRIZHITEE - BEINEERAR
A]A 351,844,434 o hEEEZE - B
(@) 41,929,435 BB HEEBLEHLLTE
HES UAEREER &(b) 309,914,999
P& RS 1D Ty £ 7 H 45 A Best Equity & & 17 X AR
A7 17% - B T H 4 S AT 72 Best Equity AR 3R
RNE HITFEREFTE= D2 — A L2 R
MR AR AR

SRR BN A $£793,526,275 A% B 17 P
B Ehh(a) 244,246,275 1 Jh B H
EREA WUNHZEZERD RO)IEBBEHAE
2014F7R10B 2RO ERER - (EAEXRA]
FERRNTE - §4Q 7] 549,280,000 J& i {5
(FBE M 201596 A30H AR A B &ITRAL
129%) KA BEERSRAR  (EARBEERSRA
RAIMALTARZSBHEBRELSRAFN2014F
5A30B % EB(R2015F12A7THEBERE
PR E s 2 IR o

notes:

3.

Mr. Chi Wen Fu has interest in an aggregate of 1,579,106,912
Shares of which (a) 237,235,548 Shares are beneficially owned
by him and registered in his name; and (b) 1,341,871,364
Shares are deemed corporate interests by virtue of his holding
of 83.74% of the issued share capital of Alpha Sino which
entitled him to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or
more of the voting power at general meeting of Alpha Sino.

As pursuant to a share mortgage agreement dated 10
July 2014, Alpha Sino, being the substantial shareholder
of the Company, had mortgaged 549,280,000 Shares
(representing approximately 12% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at 30 June 2015) to International Finance
Corporation (“IFC”) as security for a loan agreement dated
30 May 2014 (as amended and restated on 7 December
2015) entered into between IFC and Baishan City Tianan
Magnesium Resources Co. Ltd.

These Shares are deemed corporate interests by virtue of her
holding of 52.83% of the issued share capital of Best Equity
which entitled her to exercise or control the exercise of one-
third or more of the voting power at general meeting of Best
Equity.

Mr. Yang had been an executive director of the Company
during the period from 1 July 2013 to 4 August 2016. Mr.
Yang Yuchuan has interest in an aggregate of 351,844,434
Shares of which (a) 41,929,435 Shares are beneficially owned
by his spouse, Ms. Lao Min, and registered in her name; and
(b) 309,914,999 Shares are deemed corporate interests by
virtue of his holding of 47.17% of the issued share capital
of Best Equity which entitled him to exercise or control the
exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general
meeting of Best Equity.

IFC has interest in an aggregate of 793,526,275 Shares of
which (a) 244,246,275 Shares are beneficially owned by
it and registered in its name; and (b) pursuant to a share
mortgage agreement dated 10 July 2014, Alpha Sino, being
the substantial shareholder of the Company, had mortgaged
549,280,000 Shares (representing approximately 12% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at 30 June 2015) to
IFC as security for a loan agreement dated 30 May 2014 (as
amended and restated on 7 December 2015) entered into
between IFC and Baishan City Tianan Magnesium Resources
Co. Ltd.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

During the period under review, none of the Directors nor
the management shareholders of the Company or their
respective associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”)) had any interest in a business
that competed or might compete with the business of the
Group.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The percentage of purchases and sales for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and customers
are as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier 15.3%
— 5 largest suppliers in aggregate 29.5%
Sales
- the largest customer 3.0%
— 5 largest customers in aggregate 9.3%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the
major suppliers or customers noted above.

Connected Transaction

Other than those disclosed in Note 45 to the financial
statements, there was no connected transaction during the
year and in last year.

L102 LHOd3YH TVNNNV %2102




70

CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

LB AEEZERERAF

ETEHE

Directors’ Report

ABEFREZTRM

BEAQARTRARRERMEZERN MR ES
o KABREZE2017F12A31HIEFER

—BHH#ERHATERE -

= EED

HE2017F12A31BIFEMRB &£ B EA
S EEMARARSER  ETHREGET
ZREREFRE EEm - ARAFREERITZ

BRRAFAGLRE-HABRBRAZIEAS
RV EBI AR A B RAR B ZAZEEN -

REEFS

M
HITEF

&H& 0 2018FE3 A 27 H

Sufficiency of Public Float

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2017.

Auditors

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2017 were
audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose
term of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual
general meeting. A resolution for the re-appointment of
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as the auditors of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Shum Sai Chit
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
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B 31/F., Gloucester Tower
FIR The Landmark
EITEH115% 11 Pedder Street

B ES Central
ERTITRESE Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CENTURY SUNSHINE
GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 82 to 220, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountant
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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FREEITER

FRETFEEREBRMNERHEG - ABYAX
HNGEAMBERRNEBARSEENFTH - L
FHEERMEAREBEAMBRRLRLARSR
RAETRIEN - R TEHELEREHERN
BR -

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

HEETER

Key audit matters

P B 5 R KR E

Impairment of trade receivables

A2 M RRM T4 LT 28

BMEESEHNTEEERRENEENS
How our audit addressed
the key audit matters

Refer to notes 4 and 28 to the consolidated financial statements

MR2017F12A31H - ESEBRKESERBELD
491,501,000/ 7t & &l (B % 5 499,974,000 8 7T © E &
BSRBERRETBIWE Y Re/KFEREIREHE -
EREZEMNEREXVREABRER  SEFPEH - 2
BHEEHT LR LNREAREHFHEEEEN
FHEMATESER CEEERANBEEHNETERS
DREANZZ R —MUBNEBERIEL R ERE -

As of 31 December 2017, the Group had trade
receivables with gross amount of approximately
HK$491,501,000 and provision for impairment of
approximately HK$9,974,000. The determination as
to whether a trade receivable is collectable involved
high level of management’s judgement. Specific
factors management considered include the age
of the balances, location of customers, existence
of disputes, recent historical payment patterns
and any other available information concerning the
creditworthiness of counterparties. Management used
these information to determine whether a provision
for impairment is required either for a specific
transaction or for a customer’s balance overall.

BREHEEREEUEZREGRRREN G EF 81

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment on trade receivables included:

o FHMAEEERBEER G BREAmMESAHEE
JE M AR 1t B 5 8 W 3R AT U 00 14 ) 2 7 B0
(IRBRE RN E S RYGRIEDN - EPARFE)
EITRIR

Evaluating management’s impairment assessment
included testing, on a sample basis, the
underlying data used by management to assess
the collectability of trade receivables, such as an
aged trade receivable analysis, payments from
customers;
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BEMESHTEEARENSENTE

BRETSEE How our audit addressed
Key audit matters the key audit matters
EWE S RFORE (&)

Impairment of trade receivables (continued)

s HUYEBRATAEBMERRDROBBERET
A UREREFETNEBRETR - &6
BRFEGE B ZEMRBNROEANRE RE
BELMFRN

Testing the key aged balances where no
provision was recognised to check if there
were any objective evidences of impairment.
This included sample checking of payments
received subsequent to the year end date and
reviewing historical payment patterns;

s EEMARRERENEAEZRUARAN A
BREBBAHGBERNIEH - R EZEHE
ﬁzﬁﬁ@m—r,uﬁ%éﬁﬁ% F BPME LN HRER
R AR F AR 3R

Selecting a sample of the significant trade
receivable balances where a provision for
impairment was recognised and understood
the rationale behind management’s judgement.
In order to evaluate these judgements, we
checked the age of these balances, the
customers’ historical payment patterns and
any post year-end payments; and

s REHHBERERFBERES  RMATEEDEE
BB EERNRREAEFERRAE —
B o

Assessing the overall provision for impairment,
we also considered the consistency of
management’s application of policy for
recognising provisions with the prior years.

BARA BEENGWRABSER -2 -

We consider the management conclusion to be
consistent with the available information.
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RMEEER

Key audit matters

M BERRBRE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

F2HEA MWK 4 RMHE17

BEMESHTEEFEREASENSE

How our audit addressed

the key audit matters

Refer to notes 4 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements

R2017F12831H EEEEME BE K&
# #93,558,617,000 ;L T EZBHIEERERITREY
1,268,148,000,8 7t * HE L i R EF 4)912,243,000
BILRE N HE2491,344,162,000/8 7L ° SHEER
HrELEBLHBEME BMERREREMNIEEZ -
I BEEEREN c BRMETRLEE - FEREY
¥ HELEHEZERER  MiAHBEREERSE
FE - BEEENEIGENLLREIR RRE - fIaneh
W& RPWAE - BEEECEFIIEGHEMETHE
ETHMRIET  BERESOITKESE 2 GEIE-

As of 31 December 2017, the Group had
property, plant and equipment of approximately
HK$3,558,617,000, which mainly comprised
construction in progress of approximately
HK$1,268,148,000, leasehold land and building
of approximately HK$912,243,000 and plant and
machinery of approximately HK$1,344,162,000. A
recent history of losses of the subsidiaries of the
Group is an indicator of impairment for property, plant
and equipment and hence an impairment assessment
is required. We focused on this area because the
balance of property, plant and equipment was
significant and these assessment process is complex
and highly subjective which based on the selection
of appropriate comparables and assumptions such
as discount rate, future revenue. The Group engaged
an external valuer to perform the valuation for the
recoverable amount of the leasehold land and
building and plant and machinery.

BPEEEEEHRENGREFERE

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment included:

o FHABUAEMNER  BEHREEIL

Evaluating the independent valuer’'s competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

o MRERMYMEBMITENEELERMGEMD ¥
EFTERAN A RBRBREERE

Assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumption based
on our knowledge of the relevant industry and
using our valuation experts;

o RMERMEEBRITEMNERE DHHERBREE
HEE R

Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions
based on our knowledge of the business and
industry; and

o BN AREGEIANMERNE ARIED
HERE -

Checking, on a sampling basis, the accounting
and relevance of the input data used.

HPERBREIRBRIEIS -

We found that the assumptions were supported by
the available evidence.



REESER

Key audit matters

FEREE

Carrying value of inventories

F2HEAMIEMERMEE4 LT 27

BAZBMERE 7

Independent Auditors’ Report

BMEESEAPEERRENSTENS
How our audit addressed
the key audit matters

Refer to notes 4 and 27 to the consolidated financial statements

MR2017F 1283818 ESEEAEGFEHBRER)D
481,065,000 7T ' BERFLEEREBEERD
RMRAEERRETERER - BTER MBI
mMEMER —REPRE FEEESHNRELHRKE
b RmizBe - ﬁtvliﬁﬁmlﬁwﬁﬁfiﬂ%{%z
HEDKFE - I RFEELN  UFHAEUREERFS
PN ﬁﬁa—ﬂﬁmﬁ%ﬁw&m&$ﬁ%21ﬁa‘EH—E:%é
BZREKE EHEANBEEEEHRKBEZHE
MEEFEE -

As of 31 December 2017, the Group had inventories
net of provision of approximately HK$481,065,000.
which comprised of fertiliser products, magnesium
products, metallurgical flux products and electronics
products. The electronic products are usually with
short life cycles, while other products are usually
with longer life span. The consumption of inventories
are subject to changing consumers’ demands
and market trends which increased the level of
judgement involved in estimating inventory provisions.
Judgement was required to assess the appropriate
level of provisioning for items which may be ultimately
obsoleted or sold below cost as a result of a
reduction in customers’ demand. Such judgements
included management’s expectations for future sales
and inventory liquidation plans.

BPEHEEEREFEREENEF B

Our procedures in relation to management’s determination
of the carrying value of inventories included:

e FHERRETERE BRIBRFIAEE BENIE
FoERBR - GEEERSEEENAEEBEHRE
FEERELETLE RAMERS —B X&
BLERTERENHERELUNGERERA
M BB BUR

Assessing the process, methods and assumptions
used to determine the provision for slow-moving,
excess or obsolete items. This included comparing
management’s calculations for consistency against
those used in the prior years and assessing the
provision policy adopted by management by
reference to past usage or sales history;

o DAHER ﬁ‘wﬁg}ifﬂﬁu“ DT R BE R Y SHEFT B
RERE. HIJWAIEP)?E%%EEE%ZTJ%E’JT%
BE- LA EFaREE

Testing the reliability of the underlying
data used by management to calculate the
inventory obsolescence provisions by sample
checking of an inventory ageing analysis and
the subsequent sales orders and usage;

5
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Independent Auditors’ Report

RMEEER

Key audit matters

FEREEHE)

Carrying value of inventories (continued)

BMEESEATERERRENSTENS
How our audit addressed
the key audit matters

s BBNGHEREARBEZFFEEZNAEES
B RS EERNEREE K&

Testing the accuracy of the resultant calculation
by assessing the calculation criteria and
recalculating the provision for the inventories
based on those criteria; and

o BEEEABN BFLBEMEAMES - KM
EBRERFAHMANEBTEERENTER
FEHE -

For those items which were identified as slow-
moving, excess or obsolete, we assessing
management’s calculation of net realisable
value by checking to the latest or subsequent
selling prices.

BPERFERBESIIREGRESF -

We found the carrying values of the inventories was
supported by the available evidence.
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Key audit matters
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Business Combinations

F2HEAMIEMRMEEI LT 47

BAZBMERE 7

Independent Auditors’ Report

BEESEATEERRENSTENS
How our audit addressed
the key audit matters

Refer to Notes 3 and 47 to the consolidated financial statements

R2017F 4818 - &EHEBEUWEE Acronagrotrans Ltd
LEHER(EEERBURLBCIRMNDBRA A
([WEAL B 1) 2505%#z=) - REA/1ETHEE R
7768L) MEBEHAMWEBLFEEALEBENA
31,733,000 7t - X S E TR M ILEA A 82017
FA4A1ARR BEEEZFAAEK . BHEBERTEX
SEBERSILELIB 2505% L REm - At E5E
ERGEEEREM2ANEREREZBERBRELN
31,733,000 7T - WER ETHANEKBEERAES
BEHREZEEEEANHE - BESECESBEILNINDG
B AXEEEENEET -

On 1 April 2017, the Group acquired the entire
interests in Acronagrotrans Ltd, which directly holds
50.5% interests in Shandong Hongri Chemical
Joint stock Company, Ltd. (“Shandong Hongri”), at
the consideration of US$1 (equivalent to HK$7.76)
and the fair value of net assets acquired from
the business combination was approximately
HK$31,733,000. The transaction was completed and
Shandong Hongri was consolidated into the Group
with effect from 1 April 2017. The Group gained
50.5% controlling interest in Shandong Hongri after
the completion of the transaction. As a result, the
Group has recognised gain on bargain purchase of
approximately HK$31,733,000 in its consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. The acquisition requires the identification
of assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
which require significant management judgement.
Independent external valuations were obtained in
order to support management estimates.

BMEHEEERERBEEEFENARERFEHE

Our procedures in relation to the management
determination the fair values of net assets acquired
included:

o FHMEBMINEAERMER RN REEIML

Evaluating of the independent external valuers’
competence, capabilities and objectivity;

o RERMYMBITRNERIERGEND - 71
EFTERN AR BARBRNEERE &

Assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions based
on our knowledge of the relevant industry and
using our valuation experts; and

o DAUWRERDD AR PR R A0 B A BUR ) ERENE K2 AR

Checking, on sampling basis, the accuracy
and relevance of the input data used.

BPIERCWE A BB E MAERERIE B 6
NAEGEIRE BB

We found the acquisition-date fair values of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed are supported by the available evidence.

7
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HpfE R

EEAHHEMESRE - HMESBREFRAM
BELS  BIEEGAEMBERERLBFIHZEE
wmE(THMERED -

BAPEEEMBRRNELL TREEMESR
BT EZEEMERREREATANERE

A ©
AR MYRAMBRRNET  BANEEE
FIEEAMEE - HUBRET  TREMEERS
HGAPBEHRRARMEFTRETATENIE
MEEERBEREUTFFEERHERBANE
e EREMERNTHIE - NREMABLEM
EEFHEERERL  RAFTEREZEE -
BESTHE  RVLEEMNSRS -

EERERZEENGREMBHRREAARE
MEE

EXAAARBEEBSTMASRMNTENS
BEEARFBRARGINEERE  HBEEE
MABSNERAMEHREK  YHERBRESEY
BHREANBRE T FEARRGFSERMEBNE
REgREGAFTREAOABZEFIBE -

ERBRAMBHRRE  EFAHNM E5E
FEKEMERE N YHEBRABATREEIFEL
LERNEER  URERFELE RS ER
BRIEZBER BEEREBRMFILEE - &5l
BEHMEBERNBERTSR -

BEEENTBRE B
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Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon (the
“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the Other Information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other
Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other
Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this Other Information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors and the
Audit Committee for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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B EN R E
Independent Auditors’ Report

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

LB AEEZERERAF

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Wong Sze Wai, Basilia.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Sze Wai, Basilia
Practising Certificate Number: PO5806

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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HE2017F12 A1 HIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
FHExT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
LON Revenue 7 3,772,290 2,589,221
HEKA Cost of sales (2,853,587) (1,829,360)
EM Gross profit 918,703 759,861
ER G Gain on bargain purchase 47(a) 31,733 -
HE— B A KkE Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 48 1,895 -
H bl sk 18558 Other gains or losses, net 9 80,946 53,950
HERTMSHEEER Selling and marketing costs (159,496) (93,911)
THRAX Administrative expenses (274,575) (159,867)
b 5 Z R AE Exchange differences, net (42,967) 3,937
BIEEBERENDEER Net realised and unrealised gain on
REIR U 5 FRE investments held for trading 85 8,791
EBhaE A=A REE Share of profits and losses of
joint ventures 1,087 1,695
FEAE — Rl & A A Share of profit/(loss) of an associate
wmAL (E518) 1 (1)
% ER Finance costs 10 (151,486) (117,564)
B TS ¢ A& A Profit before income tax 405,926 456,891
FrBHiFx Income tax expense 11 (144,304) (143,839)
FERBEF Profit for the year 12 261,622 313,052
HtzmBA(FX) Other comprehensive income/
HBRFFEH - (expenses), net of
income tax:
HigmgEls ks ltems that may be reclassified
Bz IAE subsequently to profit or loss:
FRNEMAEHERE Net gain/(loss) arising on
EEZME(F8)FE revaluation of available-for-sale
investments during the year 9,285 (3,138)
FARSAIHEEREZ Reclassification adjustments
B relating to disposal of
available-for-sale investments
during the year (487) (2,419)
BMEBINEBRESZ Exchange differences arising
M H ZRE from translation of foreign
operations 300,860 (279,303)
FREMR2EWA(B%)  Other comprehensive income/
HMEBRAEH (expenses) for the year,
net of income tax 309,658 (284,860)
FAZHEKALLE Total comprehensive
income for the year 571,280 28,192




meBEaRkHEMEZEKER
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE2017412 A31 BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
FHExT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
THALTEGFERRF : Profit for the year
attributable to:
PAN/NEIEZZE N Owners of the Company 260,316 302,334
FEVERR R 2 Non-controlling interests 1,306 10,718
261,622 313,052
THATEEFREE Total comprehensive
WA (BAX) 4% : income/(expenses)
for the year
attributable to:
ZINNETEZF =N Owners of the Company 548,468 44,908
IR HE A Non-controlling interests 22,812 (16,716)
571,280 28,192
BREF Earnings per share:
—EARREECEW) - basic and diluted (HK cents) 15  5.671{licents 6.571{licents
BEFT I s B AN AR & B s iR By — B © The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

®2017F 12 A31H
As at 31 December 2017

2017

FTEx
HK$’000

2016
TAET
HK$’000

IRBEE Non-current assets
+ Hb s A A Land use rights 16 311,177 206,746
ME - BB RRE Property, plant and equipment 17 3,558,617 2,093,569
B Investment properties 18 - 114,001
GES Goodwill 20 197,368 197,368
mEEE Intangible assets 21 389,524 717
IRAEE Mining rights 22 487,464 466,741
SN E HERFHIE Payment for acquisition of patents - 50,049
AN Long term deposits 60 372
REERRZIRE Investments in joint ventures 24 6,490 5,362
R—EBE QR ZKE Investment in an associate 25 18 17
AHEEERE Available—for-sale investments 26 3,000 6,840
B IRIRITF K Pledged bank deposits 32 26,084 31,587
4,979,802 3,173,369
REEE Current assets
AHEHERE Available-for-sale investments 26 11,620 70,632
FE Inventories 27 481,065 227,387
+ 3 fsE A Land use rights 16 8,647 4,723
B RN IE R EREE Trade and bills receivables 28 497,385 456,381
FENRIE - Z& K Prepayments, deposits and
Hith fE k1A other receivables 29 470,648 400,525
ARE AT Income tax recoverable 1,835 1,706
RIEEREKRE Investments held for trading 30 - 10,415
ER—R&ERAFIFIE Amount due from a joint venture 24 844 133
RIT IR & sk Bank and cash balances 32 930,911 901,198
2,402,955 2,073,100
DEAFRIERENEE Asset classified as held for sale 19 119,521 -
2,522,476 2,073,100
B RBEE Less: Current liabilities
B 5 I R ER RE Trade and bills payables 33 633,838 83,230
FEETE R & E b FE < 3R IE Accruals and other payables 34 639,085 211,217
FERFRB R Income tax payable 35,556 31,075
=8 Borrowings 35 626,425 320,665
TESEBE Derivative financial liabilities 37 - 32,600
1,934,904 678,787
REBEEFE Net current assets 587,572 1,394,313
EEHABERRBER Total assets less current
liabilities 5,567,374 4,567,682




mEMBRR K

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2017412 A31H
As at 31 December 2017

2017 2016
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
W ERBERE Less: Non-current liabilities
PEIE A Deferred revenue 39 73,585 66,176
H b B B Other payables 34 239,650 121,000
AT A Exchangeable bonds 38 227,985 208,504
BE Borrowings 35 1,192,760 1,011,457
REBIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 40 179,966 106,079
1,913,946 1,513,216
EEFE Net assets 3,653,428 3,054,466
ADAEE AEMGBKRAR Capital and reserves
k#E attributable to owners
of the Company
% 7 Share capital 41 101,419 101,756
f#EE Reserves 3,194,963 2,610,945
3,296,382 2,712,701
FERES Non-controlling interests 357,046 341,765
ERsE Total equity 3,653,428 3,054,466

EEEN2018F 3 A27 B /MEREETIZEFRN  The consolidated financial statements on pages 82 to 220
FE82E220B iAW EHmEK - WH THESE  were approved and authorised for issue by the board of

REREZEE directors on 27 March 2018 and are signed on its behalf
by:
MXE Tttt
Chi Wen Fu Shum Sai Chit
EZE EE-
Director Director
BRI s B ARG A SRR — 35 - The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE2017F12 A1 HIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

ADARE AR
Attributable to Owners of the Company
AR
i EriE  ERRR BRE MR TRRES FER
Bx  RBRE  (WEG)  EGEE  (WEGE) () Ei BE BEBE  EfERE  RERA it B
Capital Convertible
redemption Capital  Statutory Share bonds Non-
Share Share  reserve Revaluation  reserve  reserve option Translation equity Other  Retained controlling
capital premium (note (i)  reserve (note (ii)) (note (iii))  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve earnings Sub-total interests Total
TR T T TR TEL T TR T T TERL TR T T TR
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000  HK$'000
(&57)  (gE5)) (985)  (4E))
(Restated) ~ (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)
201651 18 Asat 1 January 2016 101,986 1,420,855 3,959 5,647 13,666 153,141 4,853 (25,748) 12,443 (44,161) 131,655 2,958,296 406,226 3,364,522
EREF] Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - - 0233 302,33 10,718 318,082
EREHRERR Other comprefiensive expenses
(MBAER): for the year, net of income tax:
EREETLEERE  Net loss arising on revaluation of
BEEEBEE avalable-for-sale investments
during the year - - - - - - - - - Y I IR .
ERPETEHERE  Reclassifcation adjusiments relating
LENAERE to disposal of avalleble-for-sale
invstments during the year - - - 2,419 - - - - - - - 2419 - (2419
BERNERFELE,  Bxchange differences arlsing from
EiZE translation of foreign operations - - - - - - - (es3,180) - - - (8318 (26,117) (279,303
ERRE(RR)/ Total comprehensive (expenses)/

WALE income for the year - - - 4,240 - - - (263,186 - - 302,334 44,908 (16,716) 28,192
SEEE) Final dividend paid - BT - - - - - - - - - BT - BTy
BEAARES Redemption of convertile bonds - - - - - - - - (1243 - 144 - - -
BRNBRE Share option lapsed - - - - - - (1,714) - - - 1714 - - -
E e Transfer to reserve - - - - - B - - - - (364 - - -
REEERHATZ Eouity setled share-based

25 transactions - - - - - - 1,075 - - - - 1,075 - 1,075
WBAREREER Changes in ownership interest

288 in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - s -5 (774 (275.338)
HEkt Share cancellation 230) 3,981) 230 - - - - - - - 230) {421) - (4,211)
#2016%512A318  Asat 31 December 2016 and

Ro07TE1£1A 1 January 2017 075 BTI00 4180 1407 1666 18878 4214 (7893 SRy 15021 o72N0f G765 3054466

EREF Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 260,316 260,316 1,306 261,622

EREHZERR Other comprehensive expense for

(MBAER): the year, net of income tax:
EREETLHERE  Net gain arising on revaluation of
EfhaTE avallable-for-sale investments
during the year - - - 1,113 - - - - - - - 1,113 1,512 9,285
EMHETHNEREY Reclassfcatlon adjustment relating
ENfOEAR o disposal of available-for-sale
investments during the year - - - (487) - - - - - - - (487) - (487)
AERINERFEL.  Buchange differences arising from
EizZE tranglation of oreign operations - - - - - - - 280,866 - - - 280,866 19,994 300,860
ERRENNEE Total comprehensive income
for the year 5 5 - 1286 5 5 - 280,866 5 - 260316 548,468 22,812 571,280
BRERE Share options lapsed - - - - - - (1,307) - - - 1,807 - - -
ER3hE Transfer to reserve - - - - - 21,267 - - - - (21,267) - - -
WERERAHIXS  Equity setfled share-based
transactions - - - - - - 309 - - - - 309 - 309
WEHBAR Acquistion of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - - 31,105 31,105
SRI-EHBLE  Incorporation of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - - 2,970 2,970
HERAABEER 223 Change n ownership interest
in subsidaries 5 5 5 - 5 5 - 5 - 38,085 - 38,985 (41,608)  [2,621)
HERkt Share cancellation (337)  (3,744) 337 - - - - - - - (337)  (4,081) - (4,081)
R2TERENA  Asat 31 Decemoer 2017 101,419 1,353,356 4526 8,693 13,666 210083 3216 1,932 - (232,769) 1,832,200 3,206,382 357,046 3,653,428
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value
of the Shares of the Company which was transferred from
the Company’s retained earnings upon repurchase and
cancellation of Shares by the Company.

Capital reserve represents the difference between the
nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries that have been
acquired and capitalised pursuant to a group reorganisation
over the nominal value of the Company’s Shares issued in
exchange therefore.

Statutory reserve mainly represents the fund set aside by the
subsidiaries based on 10% of their net profit of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) statutory financial statements
and that for the purpose of certain safety production
activities.

In accordance with the articles of association of the
subsidiaries established in the PRC and the relevant PRC
rules and regulations, these subsidiaries are required to set
aside 10% of their profit after income tax as recorded in
the PRC statutory financial statements as statutory reserve,
except where the reserve fund balance has reached 50%
of the subsidiaries’ registered capital. The reserve fund can
only be used to make good the subsidiaries’ previous years’
losses, to expand the subsidiaries’ production operations or
to increase the capital of the subsidiaries.

Pursuant to certain regulations issued by the State
Administration of Work Safety of the PRC and other relevant
regulatory bodies, the Group is required to set aside funds
mainly for mining of dolomite and serpentine at prescribed
rates. These funds can be used for maintenance and/
or improvements of safety of these activities, and is not
available for distribution to shareholders.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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2017

FiEx
HK$’000

2016
FET
HK$’'000

RETH Operating activities
W P13 31 A ) Profit before income tax 405,926 456,891
BTIIEEELTRE Adjustments for:
FrEREH Depreciation and amortisation 162,277 129,378
B % & A Finance costs 151,486 117,564
HEME - BEREZER Net gain on disposal of property,
T AR R plant and equipment and land use right (2,898) (257)
BEEERENEEERR Realised and unrealised gain
KRBT on investments held for trading (85) (8,790)
B B A Dividend income (26) (769)
A BUA Interest income (11,329) (23,970)
BIEEEROEFZR S Equity settled share-based payments 309 1,075
SRITETEARBEES Fair value change on financial derivatives (32,600) 487
FENEE NRICER) /BB Share of (profit)/loss of an associate (1) 1
Bl EWE 5 FURRE R MR Reversal of impairment and written off of
trade receivables (102) (279)
GFEEE Provision of inventories 3,400 7,058
A E S ERE Impairment of trade receivables 9,374 784
H U R IE R A Impairment of other receivables 1,003 -
A ERERE Impairment of an available-for-sale investment 3,840 460
B EERE Impairment of intangible assets - 359
HE— R B QR A Mk Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (1,895) -
HEHEERE W Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investment (593) (2,848)
KRR RERE Write back of long-aged accounts - (3,059)
188 [0 L fth JE MR 3R B R Reversal of written off of other receivables - (5,495)
ZEWE LG Gain on bargain purchase 47(a) (31,733) -
BIEEEARRR Share of profits of joint ventures (1,087) (1,695)
EEESEERMHLE Operating cash flows before movements
Rens in working capital 655,266 666,895
HERIEEEREN Proceeds from disposal of investments
FT8 A held for trading 10,915 39,750
El—FAERARRE (Increase)/decrease in amount due from a joint
(gm),/ b venture (752) 1,375
EEREEERA Purchase of investments held for trading (27) (3,429)
FERD> Decrease in inventories 16,989 2,620
& SR EIE M ERERR L Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills receivables
(&) 216,109 (20,719)
FENZE  BEe REMBWFIE  Decrease/(increase) in prepayment, deposits and
B/ () other receivables 123,339 (44,585)
B S RN FERENRE Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills payables
#in,/ () 98,368 (21,300)
FEEt B A R B e - 500 (Decrease)/increase in accruals and other payables
CRA),/HEm (359,926) 47,596
KREXBMEANRS Cash generated from operations 760,281 668,203
FTSRLR Income tax refund - 1,102
BRFTEH Income tax paid (144,328) (146,664)
RETEHMEEMN Net cash generated from operating
BeFE activities 615,953 502,641
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2017 2016
FEx FHL
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BREEE Investing activities
RITFETRD Decrease in deposits with banks 142,177 56,867
BAERRITF LM Increase in pledged bank deposits (239,174) (33,197)
BEWE  BEKHEE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (914,639) (479,013)
REFFOR D Decrease in long term deposits 312 10,316
FRLE—FAMBEAA Net cash outflow in respect of the disposal
B3R &ML TR of a subsidiary 48 (486) -
2 Interest received 10,128 26,464
B S Dividend received 26 769
HEWE - BE RERED Proceeds from disposal of property,
1S 58 plant and equipment 10,847 1,278
& T AR ATS A Proceeds from disposal of land use right 491 —
WEMB AR ZRE Net cash inflow/(outflow) on acquisition
A R )55 of subsidiaries 47 202,166 (63,212)
BELHERARAE Purchases of addition land use right (6,644) (53,059)
HEMH L ERERERIE Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale investments 68,692 68,864
XNBEAHREERERE Payments to acquire available-for-sale investments - (22,245)
m—EEBEAK AN Advance of loans to a company
REIZ RBBNER subsequently acquired as subsidiary - (233,780)
RETBRAANRESFE Net cash used in investing activities (726,104) (719,948)
mMETE Financing activities
S RME A Proceeds from new borrowings 1,626,129 379,016
EEEE Repayment of borrowings (1,599,348) (201,318)
BT ERE SIS RIBTE Net proceeds from issue of exchangeable bonds = 229,504
ERAE Interest paid (131,061) (93,993)
BERRERE Final dividend paid - (59,774)
RSB RR 2 EniEa Net cash outflow in respect of changes in
g R eMLFE ownership interest of subsidiaries (2,621) (275,338)
EIEU AL N Increase in deferred revenue 2,307 1,426
REMBARZ —BIEER Proceeds from loan from
RERNEFTWATETE a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary 114,360 11,000
BN —FHBAR—% (Decrease)/increase in an amount due to
FEERRAR R B IE CRL D) /1 a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary (64) 216
LB R AR E S B Payment for redemption of convertible bonds - (207,748)
—FE B AR BT RRES Transaction cost attributable to issue of
BIERZHA convertible bond by a subsidiary (3,357) -
PHEERD A Payment for share repurchases (4,081) (4,211)
BMETBREE (AW Net cash generate from/(used in)
BeFE financing activities 2,264 (221,220)
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2017 2016
FTERx FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
ReRERAKEELER Net decrease in cash and cash
WY RE equivalents (107,887) (418,527)
FINELRERELER Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year 709,310 1,189,255
HEERSENTE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 54,326 (61,418)
FRNESRERAESLER Cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the year 655,749 709,310
ReRERBESLER DI Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents
RAMBRRRMGZ Pledged bank deposits and bank and
BRI FRRIRT cash balances as stated in the consolidated
PR statement of financial position 956,995 932,785
BERAERRENREERZ Pledged deposits with banks pledged
BHEMETER as security for borrowings and bills payable (283,299) (56,703)
EWERNREBABB=/EA Non-pledged deposits with bank with
ZEEBIBITER original maturity of more than
three months when acquired (17,947) (166,772)
REBRERERMIZ Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
BehERREER the consolidated statement of cash flows 655,749 709,310
BEFT M FE B AN AR & M TSk ey — &b » The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

General Information

Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in fertiliser
business, magnesium product business, metallurgical
flux business and electronic product business.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 21 January 2003 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap.
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman lIslands. On 17 February 2004,
the Company’s shares were listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and were
withdrawn from the GEM Board on 31 July 2008.
Since 1 August 2008, the Company’s shares have
been listing on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding
company of the Company is Alpha Sino International
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as
the functional currency of the Company. All values are
rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$’000) except
when otherwise indicated.
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2.

Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Company has applied, for the
first time, the following new standard, amendments
and interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) issued by the
HKICPA, which are effective for the Company’s
financial year beginning 1 January 2017. A summary
of the new HKFRSs are set out as below:

HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
(Amendments)

HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
(Amendments) Assets for Unrealised Losses

HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual
(Amendments) Improvements to IFRSs 2014

- 2016 Cycle

In the opinion of directors, the application of the new
and revised HKFRSs in the current period has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior periods and/
or on the disclosure set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the
first time in the current year. The amendments require
an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. In addition, the amendments
also require disclosures on changes in financial assets
if cash flows from those financial assets were, or
future cash flows will be, included in cash flows from
financing activities.
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The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 2
(Amendments)

HKFRS 4
(Amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 9
(Amendments)

HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 15
(Amendments)

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17

HKFRS 19
(Amendments)
HKAS 28
(Amendments)
HKFRS 1
(Amendments)
HKAS 40
(Amendments)
HKFRS 28
(Amendments)

Amendments to
HKFRSs

HK (IFRIC) -
Int 22

HK (IFRIC) -
Int 23

Classification and Measurement
of share-based payment
Transaction’

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contract’

Financial Instruments’

Prepayment Features with

Negative Compensations?

Sales or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with
Customer!

Leases?

Insurance Contract*
Employee Benefits

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

First time adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standard’

Transfers of Investment

Property!

As part of the Annual
Improvement to 2014-2016
Cycle!

Annual Improvement to HKFRS
2015-2017 Cycle?

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty Over Income Tax
Treatment?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018, with early application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019, with early application permitted.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2021, with early application permitted.
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HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in
2010 to include requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and in 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting. Another
revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014
mainly to include a) impairment requirements for
financial assets and b) limited amendments to the
classification and measurement requirements by
introducing a fair value through other comprehensive
income measurement category for certain simple debt
instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 that are relevant to the
Group are described as follows:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent reporting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair values at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the
fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in
profit or loss.
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With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit
risk in other comprehensive income would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to changes in the financial liabilities’
credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount
of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or
loss was presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model
under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model
requires an entity to account for expected credit
losses and changes in those expected credit
losses at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting.
However, greater flexibility has been introduced
to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments
and the types of risk components of non-
financial that are eligible for hedge accounting.
In addition, the effectiveness test has been
overhauled and replaced with the principle
of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also
no longer required. Enhanced disclosure
requirements about an entity’s risk management
activities have also been introduced.
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HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments
recorded at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, lease receivables, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts that
are not accounted for a fair value through profit or
loss under HKFRS 9, to be recorded based on an
expected credit loss model either on a twelve-month
basis or a lifetime basis.

In general, the directors anticipate that the application
of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will
result in earlier provision of credit losses which are
not yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial
assets measured at amortised cost upon application
of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors, if the
expected credit loss model were to be applied by the
Group, the accumulated amount of impairment loss
to be recognised by the Group as at 1 January 2018
would be increased as compared to the accumulated
amount recognised under HKAS 39 mainly attributable
to expected credit losses provision on trade
receivables. Such further impairment recognised under
expected credit loss model would reduce the opening
retained profits and increase the deferred tax assets
at 1 January 2018.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
Amendments to HKFRS 10:

° An exception from the general requirement of full
gain or loss recognition has been introduced into
HKFRS 10 for the loss control of a subsidiary
that does not contain a business in a transaction
with an associate or a joint venture that is
accounted for using the equity method.

° New guidance has been introduced requiring that
gains or losses resulting from those transactions
are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only
to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests
in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains
and losses resulting from the remeasurement at
fair value of investments retained in any former
subsidiary that has become an associate or a
joint venture that is accounted for using the
equity method are recognised in the former
parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investors’ interests in the new
associate or joint venture.
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Amendments to HKAS 28:

e The requirements on gains and losses resulting
from transactions between an entity and its
associate or joint venture have been amended
to relate only to assets that do not constitute a
business.

° A new requirement has been introduced that
gains or losses from downstream transactions
involving assets that constitute a business
between an entity and its associate or joint
venture must be recognised in full in the
investor’s financial statements.

° A requirement has been added that an entity
needs to consider whether assets that are sold
or contributed in separate transactions constitute
a business and should be accounted for as a
single transaction.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of these amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 will have a material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes
a single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step
approach to revenue recognition:
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° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e  Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

Based on the current business model, the directors of
the Company do not expect the adoption of HKFRS
15 would result in significant impact on the amounts
reported on the Group's consolidated financial
statements in the future. However, there will be
additional qualitative and quantitative disclosures upon
the adoption of HKFRS 15.
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HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 provides new provisions for the accounting
treatment of leases and will in the future no longer
allow lessees to account for certain leases outside
the statement of financial position. Instead, all long-
term leases must be recognised in the statement of
financial position in the form of assets (for the rights of
use) and lease liabilities (for the payment obligations).
Short-term leases with a lease term of twelve months
or less and leases of low-value assets are exempt
from such reporting obligations. The new standard will
therefore result in recognition of a right-to-use asset
and an increase in lease liabilities in the statement
of financial position. In the income statement, rental
expenses will be replaced with depreciation and
interest expense. The new standard is not expected to
be applied by the Group until the financial year ending
31 December 2019. HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the
accounting for the Group’s operating leases. Upon
adoption of HKFRS 16 the majority of operating lease
commitments will be recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets. The lease liabilities would
subsequently be measured at amortised cost and the
right-of-use assets will be depreciated on a straight-
line basis during the lease term.

As set out in Note 44, total operating lease commitments
of the Group as at 31 December 2017 amounted to
approximately HK$43,351,000 and approximately
HK$31,102,000 had lease term over 12 months. The
Directors do not expect the adoption of HKFRS 16
would result in significant impact on the Group’s financial
performance, but it is expected that certain portion
of the lease commitments will be recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs, issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(“CO”).

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for
certain financial instruments, which are measured at
fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within
the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use
in HKAS 36.
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In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.
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Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
(including structured entities) controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it
the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee unilaterally. The Company considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether
or not the Company’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

° the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the other vote holders;

° voting rights held by the Company, other vote
holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

° any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Company has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need to be
made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meeting.
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Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Company obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Company loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income from the date
the Company gains control until the date when the
Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling interests.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to being their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.
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Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e. existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(@) The contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s profit or loss to the extent of dividends
received and receivables. The Company’s investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment.
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Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures
An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position
to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decision
about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint
ventures are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the
Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investments in the associates or joint
ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
or joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s
investments in associates or joint ventures.
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If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained
interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment
continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant
influence over the associate or joint control over the
joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any
retained investment at its fair value. Any difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint
control and the fair value of the retained investment
and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or
loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5.
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Changes in the Group’s Ownership

Interests in Existing Subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
Where certain assets of the subsidiary are measured
at revalued amounts or fair values and the related
cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted
for as if the Company had directly disposed of the
related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred directly to retained earnings). The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement or, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a
jointly controlled entity.

L102 LHOd3YH TVNNNV %2102




108

CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

LB AEEZERERAF

s B
Notes to the Financial Statements

HZE2017F 12 A31 BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

e e

EBWBIEABBEAR - REBAH
BENKERAAREAE MAESRAE
AEEERNEE  AREHREEL N
AAEAAEENEERAS BRI BK
BT HOYE IR PT B IT RV B UL B B
RAEEM - BB ERBABOKEARE
ERERRED®R -

RUBERHE CRBAIEREENAEZSR
BEIRE AR EER - HETHIEBRR

() EEVEEEXBENMEEBERNZ
HERNABEREENIRERELS
FHERIE1I2MER R E B G
AF 195 RERBMNERME

(i) EHRE T AEEURG TR
SEERWBEFUBRNDIANRFE
ANBEIRATERKEERES
& B 15 R 5 AE B 58 2 5% ARR 19 2 A AT
2K

(i) WRBEBEBMBRELENESRIFIED
EMERBEERERIEEEEBKS
DEBENENEE(KEEHES )T
RIEZENGTE -

Business Combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

(i)  deferred tax assets or liabilities, and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

(i) liabilities or equity instruments related to
sharebased payment transactions of the acquiree
or the replacement of an acquiree’s share-based
payment transactions with share-based payment
transactions of the Group are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date; and

(i) assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 Noncurrent Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.
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Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or another measurement basis
required by another standard.

When the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes assets or
liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments being made against
goodwill or gain on bargain purchase. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the
measurement period about facts and circumstances
that existed as of the acquisition date. Measurement
period does not exceed one year from the acquisition
date.
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The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as
an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages,
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition
date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control),
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in
the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were
disposed of.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity
interest recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity before the acquisition
date are reclassified to profit or loss when the Group
obtains control over the acquiree.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), or
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised as of that date.
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Acquisition of Additional Interest in a

Subsidiary

When the Group increases its interest in an entity that
is already controlled by the Group, goodwill arising on
such acquisition represents the difference between the
cost of additional interest acquired and the increase
in the Group’s share of the net carrying amount
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired. The difference between the cost
of additional interest acquired and the book value
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities attributable to the additional interest acquired
is recognised as a reserve movement (other reserve).
The difference represents the difference that arose
since the original acquisition date that is attributable
to the Group’s increased interest in the subsidiary. On
the subsequent disposal of the subsidiary, the reserve
is transferred to retained earnings.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
relevant business at the date of acquisition. Such
goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of the
relevant cash generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of
CGU, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the acquisition. A CGU to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
financial year, the CGU to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that financial year. When the recoverable amount of
the CGU is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and
then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.
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On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold in the normal
course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and title has passed, when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group
maintain neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor effective control
over the goods sold.

Interest income from a financial asset excluding
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investment including financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
when the shareholders’ right to receive payment have
been established.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Service fee income is recognised when the services
have been rendered.

Any other income not mentioned above is recognised
whenever it is received or receivable.
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Government Grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including leasehold
land and buildings held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than construction in progress),
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Construction in progress includes property, plant
and equipment in the course of construction for
production or for its own use purposes. Construction
in progress is carried at cost less any recognised
impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.
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Investment Properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. On initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is charged so as
to write off the cost of investment properties over
the lease term and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use or no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit
or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Assets classified as held for sale

Assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use
and a sale is considered highly probable. They are
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell, except for assets such
as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets and investment property
that are carried at fair value and contractual rights
under insurance contracts, which are specifically
exempt from this requirement. An impairment loss is
recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down
of the asset to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is
recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value
less costs to sell of an asset, but not in excess of any
cumulative impairment loss previously recognised.
A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date
of the sale of the asset is recognised at the date of
derecognition. HKFRS5(25) Assets are not depreciated
or amortised while they are classified as held for
sale. HKFRS5(38) assets classified as held for sale
are presented separately from the other assets in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Land Use Rights

Payment for obtaining land use rights is considered
as prepaid operating lease payment. Land use rights
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, amortisation is
charged to profit or loss over the period of the rights
or the term of the respective enterprise to which the
land use rights are granted, whichever is the shorter,
using the straight-line method.

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose
of lease classification, unless the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, in which case, the entire lease is
generally treated as a finance lease and accounted
for as property, plant and equipment. To the extent
the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted for
as operating leases and amortised over the lease term
on a straight-line basis.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownerships to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as Lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

The Group as Lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable
as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.

L102 LHOd3YH TVNNNV %2102




116

CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

LB AEEZERERAF

s B
Notes to the Financial Statements

HZE2017F 12 A31 BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

BILEE
REBEHHRBIIETREE

EXBAHTERBNELEE  FHAE
MEEMNTER  MASRERASEBTE
AR EDRBE RER - BHELE
ENKRAERRERNKEEMNARE -

RBEREREK  EAEBRERFHNEL
BETVERAR Rt 88 R AR REHRE
BRIk EEERERFHUNELEE
B SORRE T A B F iR R 8 o
%% BEERERFHNEERKA
AL EL 1R RETREE BRI

BARMABAORAXBEEELN  WRAK
My K BRI A B HEE R D A F A A 8
FHIAEREHE -

BE

BIRUNERKATIR - REHE HFREN
BERRBRAMZ AREER  LUAER
EREEF A ERFHE E10FAMH

Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets Acquired in a Business

Combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are identified and recognised separately from goodwill
where they satisfy the definition of an intangible asset
and their fair values can be measured reliably. The
cost of such intangible assets is recognised at their
fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Alternatively, assets with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Technical Know-how

Expenditure on acquired technical know-how is
capitalised and amortised using the straight-line
method over its estimated useful life of 5 years, from
the date when the technical know-how is available for
use.

Trademark

Trademarks are shown at historical cost. Trademarks
acquired in a business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date and amortised using
the straight-line method over its estimated useful life
of 5 to 10 years.
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Research and Development Expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

- the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use
or sale;

- the intention to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

- the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

- how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

- the availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the intangible
asset; and

- the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during the
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if
any), on the same basis as intangible assets acquired
separately.
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Derecognition of Intangible Assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset are measured at
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised
in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Mining Rights

Mining rights, including transferred exploration and
evaluation assets, are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. The mining
rights are amortised on the production quantities over
the total estimated mineral reserve. Mining rights are
written off to the profit or loss if the mining property is
abandoned.

Foreign Currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of nonmonetary items carried at fair
value, are included in profit or loss for the period.
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For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity (i.e. the translation reserve)
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving
loss of joint control over jointly controlled entity that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity.
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Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement Benefit Costs

Pension Schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group also operates a defined contribution staff
retirement scheme registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”)
for its employees (including certain directors), the
assets of which are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
eligible employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the ORSO Scheme. When an
employee leaves the ORSO Scheme prior to his/her
interest in the Group’s employer contributions vesting
fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the Group
may be reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited
contributions.
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The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Payments to defined contribution retirement plans
are charged as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprises of
cash in hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

Share-based Payment Transactions

Share Options Granted to Employees

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value
of services received is determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity
(employee compensation reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of number of options that are expected
to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates during the vesting period, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss with a corresponding
adjustment to employee compensation reserve.

For share options that are vested immediately at
the date of grant, the fair value of the share options
granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.
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When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in employee compensation
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in employee compensation
reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years, and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would follo
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Current
and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the deferred tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in,
first-out basis for electronic product and in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method for the other inventories. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make sale.
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Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified into the following
categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments and available-for-sales financial
assets. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of financial assets and is determined at time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.
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Effective Interest Method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit

or Loss (“FVTPL”)
Financial assets at FVTPL represent investments held
for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

- it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned
on the financial assets.
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Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and bills receivables, other receivables, pledged
bank deposits, bank and cash balances and amount
due from a joint venture) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables when
the effect of discontinuing is immaterial.

Held-to-maturity Investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that the Group’s management has
the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Available-for-sale Financial Assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated as available-for-sale or not
classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of
revaluation reserve until the financial asset is disposed
of or determined to be impaired, at which time, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
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Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such unquoted equity investments, they are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at the
end of the reporting period.

Impairment of Financial Assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

For all of the Group’s financial assets, objective
evidence of impairment could include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

- breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments as well
as observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial assets is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivable, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

In the case of equity investments classified as
available for sale, objective evidence would include
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is
evaluated against the original cost of the investment
and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair
value has been below its original cost. Where there
is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss -
measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that investment previously recognised in profit
or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses on
equity instruments classified as available for sale are
not reversed through profit or loss. Increases in their
fair value after impairment are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income.
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Financial Liabilities and Equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Other Financial Liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities are generally classified
into other financial liabilities, including trade and other
payables and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective Interest Method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that from an integral
part of effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own
equity instruments.
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Convertible Bonds

The component parts of compound instruments
(convertible notes) issued by the Company are
classified separately as financial liabilities, equity and
derivatives in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability, an equity instrument and derivative
financial instruments. Conversion option that will be
settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is estimated using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments.
This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised
cost basis using the effective interest method until
extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s
maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is
determined by deducting the amount of the liability
component from the fair value of the compound
instrument as a whole. This is recognised and
included in equity, net of income tax effects, and
is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in
equity until the conversion option is exercised, in
which case, the balance recognised in equity will be
transferred to share premium. Where the conversion
option remains unexercised at the maturity date of the
convertible bonds, the balance recognised in equity
will be transferred to retained profits. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of
the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are recognised directly in equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability
component and are amortised over the lives of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.
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Financial Guarantee Contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group
are initially measured at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured
at the higher of:

- the amount of the obligation under the contract,
as determined in accordance with HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets; and

- the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with the revenue recognition
policies.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to receive cash flows from
the assets expire or, when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.
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On derecognition of a financial asset other than in
its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an option to
repurchase part of a transferred asset or retains a
residual interest that does not result in the retention
of substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and the Group retains control), the Group allocates
the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise under
continuing involvement, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values
of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to
the part that is no longer recognised and the sum
of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated
to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part
that continues to be recognised and the part that is
no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specific in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in profit or loss.
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Impairment Losses on Tangible and

Intangible Assets other than Goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs. Where
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual CGU, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of CGU for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is
an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as immediately in profit or loss.

L102 LHOd3YH TVNNNV %2102




134 HEJRRMHTE
Notes to the Financial Statements

HZE2017F 12 A31 BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

LB AEEZERERAF

BHE
EAEERBESEMHMAAERR ZAE
SHEFEEE WABTZAEAIRERE
5 \/ﬁﬂj&ﬁfﬁfff/Zigﬁﬁz $E1Eﬁ+ﬁ% ’
Bl & MR o

HWEKKBEEZFEEAN  ABEDHE
RIEFETEEMEXHRNBRENR2H
18 - BER Al m & £ R RRIR IR EE
AHEmABERAR -

REBERE D EMBHERB M IROBEE
DIREERBENEEROBERMRE
HIVE (B R ) ERAR

BEALRS
ETFBERT  ARAALHRESEANE
mERE

(1) MHEATAL  BIZALTHZALZ
HERRBEAREARE

() EHESHAEESAEE
(i) HAKEBBEAFE =

(il AAEEXTEEFRFANE
ZEBEKE

2) ﬁ?"/\—l—ﬁ'JEﬂﬂﬂfF AEREAE
A rE

(i) %ZEE%EEEZIS"ﬂEW—%IZ

REARANEELRR - B
ﬂ&ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%”jfﬁwt&ﬂﬁ%ﬁ
&) o

iy —HEBAS EREMNBER
AAER 7(‘2;@ ERRBK
E"TZ%IB‘ETWE\ Az

ARKAERA) -

0|

Provision

A provision is recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation, as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of the time value money is material,
the amount of a provision is the present value at
the end of the reporting period of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in profit or loss.

Provision for product warranties granted by the Group
on certain products are recognised based on sales
volume and past experience of the level of repairs
and returns, discounted to their present value as
appropriate.

Related Parties Transactions
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(1) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group.

(2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

()  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).
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(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group.
If the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to
the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (1).

(vii) A person identified in (1) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity and include:

(@  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources or
obligations between related parties.
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Segment Reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies
which are described in Note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

fa) Estimated Impairment of Investment
Properties, Mining Rights, Property,
Plant and Equipment, Intangible Assets
and Available-for-sale Financial Assets

Carried at Cost

The Group evaluates whether investment
properties, mining rights, property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and available-for-
sale investment carried at cost have suffered
any impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets may not be recoverable,
in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 3. The recoverable amounts
of CGUs represent the higher of the asset’s
fair value less costs to sell or its value-in-use.
The calculations of fair value less costs to sell
or value-in-use require the use of estimates.
During the year, the Group did not provide any
impairment for investment properties, mining
rights and property, plant and equipment but
provided approximately of HK$Nil for intangible
assets (2016: HK$359,000) and HK$3,840,000
for available-for-sale investments (2016:
HK$460,000).
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(b)

(c)

Estimated Useful Lives of Investment
Properties, Property, Plant and
Equipment, Intangible Assets and
Mining Rights

The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives and related depreciation/
amortisation charges for its investment
properties, property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of investment properties, property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets of similar
nature and functions and the mineral reserve
determined by independent technical adviser. It
could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions in response
to market conditions. Management will increase
the depreciation/amortisation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016, the Group did not change the estimated
useful lives of investment properties, property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets and
mining rights.

Estimated Provision for Inventories
and Write-down of Inventories to Net

Realisable Value

The management of the Group reviews the
inventories listing on a product-by-product
basis at the end of the reporting period. The
management estimates the net realisable value
for such items based primarily on the latest
invoice prices and current market conditions.
During the year, the Group has provided
approximately of HK$3,400,000 for impairment
of inventories (2016: HK$7,058,000).
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Income Tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. There are certain transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination may be uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the
current and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.

Impairment of Trade and Other

Receivables

The impairment of trade and other receivables
are based on the ongoing evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis of the
outstanding receivables and on management’s
judgment. From time to time, the Group
may experience delays in collection. Where
recoverability of trade and other receivables are
called into doubts, resulting in an impairment
of their ability to make payments, provision
may be required. Certain receivables may be
initially identified as collectable, yet subsequently
become uncollectable and result in a subsequent
write-off of the related receivables to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. Changes in the
collectability of trade and other receivables for
which provisions are not made could affect our
results of operations. During the year, the Group
has provided approximately of HK$10,377,000
for impairment on trade and other receivables
(2016: HK$784,000).
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(9)

(h)

Impairment of Goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is
impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of
the CGUs to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group
to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the CGUs and also to choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. A change
in the estimated future cash flows and/or the
discount rate applied will result in an adjustment
to the estimated impairment provision previously
made.

The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31
December 2017 was HK$197,368,000 and no
impairment loss for goodwill was recognised
during the year 31 December 2017 and 2016.

Warranty Provision

The Group gives warranties of one to two
years on certain products and undertakes to
repair or replace items that fail to perform
satisfactorily. Significant judgement is required
when determining the warranty expenses. The
Group estimates the warranty expenses based
on the actual repair and item replacement costs
incurred for the products sold in the last 24
months. Where the warranty expenses incurred
are different from the original provision, the
difference would impact on profit or loss in the
period in which the additional warranty expenses
are incurred. During the year, the Group had
provided approximately HK$303,000 for product
warranty provision (2016: HK$349,000).

Development Costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance
with the accounting policy for research and
development expenditure in Note 3 to the
financial statements. Determining the amounts
to be capitalised requires management to make
assumptions regarding the expected future cash
generation of the assets, discount rates to be
applied and the expected period of benefits.



S B
Notes to the Financial Statements

BZE2017F 12 31 BIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

5. $@TH 5. Financial instruments
(a) =WMIAER (a) Categories of Financial Instruments
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
cRMEE Financial assets
BRI EMGRIE Loans and receivables
(BREBRITR (including bank and
REER) cash balances) 1,556,228 1,609,041
AHEERE Available-for-sale investments 14,620 77,472
EARBERFAEBRY Financial assets at fair value
EREE through profit or loss = 10,415
1,570,848 1,696,928
Eaz =R Financial liabilities
B Amortised cost 3,248,141 1,898,311
MEemAaRE Derivative financial liabilities - 32,600
3,248,141 1,930,911
(b) HEEEEREBEZERBE (b) Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies
AEENIZERTABEREESR The Group’s major financial instruments include
KE - AIHEHERE  BHEKFTIE investments held for trading, available-for-sale
REWRE - A EWEIE - BUWE investments, trade and bills receivables, other
BRI - BEARITIFR - RIT receivables, amount due from a joint ventures,
MRS BHIRNRBERENE pledged bank deposits, bank and cash balances,
B EHERREMEMNKIE  EX trade and bills payables, accruals and other
AR ES - @ TEFBERER payables, borrowings and exchangeable bonds.
MeEHeE - BzEem T AEHENE Details of the financial instruments are disclosed
fr B IR SNE R B - IR - EM(E in respective notes. The risks associated with
KRR EERRBERRBESRER these financial instruments include foreign
AT #E P Al Mz R IR - exchange risk, interest rate risk, other price risk,
REEMEERREEEFHESTAT credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how
AR S RIS S K RIZEH to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
FRAEAREENBRBAESHEED Group’s overall risk management programme
FE B2 o focus on the unpredictability of financial markets

and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.
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(i)

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group does not have significant
exposures to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in
the functional currencies of the respective
subsidiaries. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency transactions,
assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor
its foreign currency hedging significant
foreign currency exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Interest Rate Risk
The Group is exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to pledged
bank deposits, bank and cash balances
and borrowings (see Notes 32 and 35
respectively for details).

Sensitivity Analysis

If interest rates on pledged bank deposits,
bank and cash balances and borrowings
as at 31 December 2017 had been 10
basis points (0.1% per annum) (2016: 10
basis points) higher/lower than the actual
effective interest rate, the Group’s profit for
the year would have been approximately
HK$862,000 (2016: HK$399,000) higher/
lower as a result of a increase/decrease in
fair value of pledged bank deposits, bank
and cash balances and borrowings.

As management considers the Group’s
exposure to the above fair value interest
rate risk is not significant, no interest-
rate swaps or other hedging activities are
undertaken by management during the year.

The Group is also exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to bank
balances carried at prevailing market rate.
However, such exposure is minimal to the
Group as the bank balances are all short-
term in nature.
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(iii) Other Price Risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity
securities and listed debt investments.
The management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risks. The Group’s other
price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
instruments listed in the PRC and Australia
and on listed debt investments.

Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on the exposure to
equity price risks at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective equity
instruments has been 10% (2016: 10%)
higher/lower, the Group’s profit for the year
would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$Nil (2016: HK$1,042,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of investments
held for trading.

If the prices of respective instruments
has been 10% (2016: 10%) higher/lower,
the Group’s other comprehensive income
would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$1,162,000 (2016: HK$4,839,000) as
a result of the changes in fair value of
available-for-sale investment.
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(iv) EEERE (iv) Credit Risk

CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in the event of the counterparties’
failure to perform their obligations at the
end of the reporting period in relation to
each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group trades only with recognised,
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s
policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

With respect to credit risk arising from the
other financial assets of the Group which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from default of the counterparties is limited
as the counterparties have good credit
standing and the Group does not expect
to incur significant loss for unallocated
advances/deposits from these entities.

The Group has no significant concentrations
of credit risk. It has policies in place to
ensure that sales of goods are made to
customers with an appropriate credit
history. The Group’s deposits with bank and
deposits placed with financial institutions
are placed in high quality financial
institutions without significant exposure to
credit risk.

The directors consider that there is no
significant credit risk in respect of the
Group’s deposits with banks and deposits
placed with financial institutions as the
financial institutions have no record of
default payment.
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(v) Liquidity Risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding through
an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market
positions. The Group aims to maintain
flexibility in funding by keeping adequate
facilities available.

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities that will be settled on a
net basis into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the end
of the reporting period to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows. Balances due within 12 months upon
recognition equal their carrying balances, as
the impact of discounting is not significant.
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2017 &

2017

ELH
(VS
Weighted
average
effective
interest rate

RERRER
Undiscounted cashflow

-FNF -FNE 3]

Total

Less than Over undiscounted
1 year {year  cash flows
Tix Tix Tix
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

3

Carrying
amount
TEn
HK$'000

BARNARENER Trade and bl payables - 633,838 - 633,838 633,838
EERREMERTE Accruals and other payables - 327,483 239,650 567,133 567,133
& Borrawings 575 726,954 1,230,377 1,957,331 1,819,185
ERES Exchangeable bonds 18.04 99,657 188,023 287,680 227,085

1,787,032 1,658,050 3,445,982 3,248,141
2016 4F 2016

Undiscounted cashflow
i —&HT —EF HAE
Weighted

average Total
effective Less than Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate cash flows amount
TEn T

HK$'000
EARNE Trade payables - 83,230 - 83,230 83,230
BT BRAREMENTE Accruals and other payables - 153,455 121,000 274,455 274,455
G Borrowings 597 360,927 1,067,111 1,428,038 1,332,122
TEhis Exchangeable bonds 18.04 18,560 287,680 306,240 208,504
616,172 1,475,791 2,091,963 1,898,311




(c)

DREFTE

(c)

A FERHENFALNEERZTES
RMEELTREBEEAANENS
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(i)

RIEEZMBEEL LN EE
HAEEEHEER MR E
HIR 2 E

AREBHEREERSRE
B R R R A B 3
g TERMBANNBNAE
ERELBAERSMAMED
DAMECEH R AR R R R
HALE) -

RATRBNALE

Fair value as at

tREE

2017512831

Financial assets 31 December 2017

1) REBENFITLHER HorEs FRRAES
(Kizt30) TR
Held for trading non-derivative  Listed equity securities
financial assets (Note 30) in the PRC: HKSNil
2 WinERE (N 26) (I REREM LHRAES -
11,620,000

Available-for-sale Listed equity securities outside
investments (Note 26) Hong Kong: HK$11,620,000
(i) BEELHHERIA:

Listed debt instruments
in Hong Kong: HKSNI
(i) EfdELHEHIA:
27
Unlisted diebt instruments in PRC:
HKSN
BE:ThT
Liabilties: HKSNl

S EEE GRS
Derivative financial liabilities
(Note 37)

MEFEANLEAEF1E - B2
BLEIRZENER -

PA SR MY
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Fair Value Measurements

This

note provides information about how the

Group determines fair values of various financial
assets and financial liabilities.

(i)

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair value on a

recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period.
The following table gives information about
how the fair values of these financial assets
and financial liabilities are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and
inputs used).

2016%12 31 A MBEGN  HERIRTZRAHE
Fair value Valuation techniques

31 December 2016 hierarchy and key inputs

NPEN ETRAES 218 EEMEMREAR
10,415,007

Listed equity securties Level 1 Quoted bid prices in
i the PRC: HKS10,415,000 onacie ke

REBEIMEREES - 218 ERTEHREAR
55M1,00087

Listed equity securites outside Level 1 Quoted bid prices in
Hong Kong: HKS5,571,000 onectie mare

REBLTHERTIA: 218 EEBHAEAE
42,816,000

Listed debt instruments Level 1 Quoted bid prices in
i Hong Kong: HIS42,816,000 anacte maret

BRdE BRI 218 EEMEMREAE
22,245,000

Unlisted debt instruments in PRC: ~~~ Level 1 Quoted bid prices in
HK822.25,00 an active market

818 1 32,600,000 T 08 T HETEES

Liabltes: HK$32,600,000 Level2 Binomil Option

Pricing Model

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2
and 3 in both years.

L102 LHOd3H TVNNNV %2102




148

CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

HRBKEEERARAT

b E U
Notes to the Financial Statements

HE2017412 A31 BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

(i) FHREEEMEEZLAE
ENFEETHEERTH
BENALE

EEZRA NEAMBEMRE
RHNEREENSRABNKE
mEREAREBERELE  EARAE
= AR M B %) /227,985,000 /%
TR R ERE R EE QR ER
HERON

SREE Financial asset

AHHERE Available-for-sale
investment

R AES Listed equity securities

(ii) Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that
are not measured at fair value on

recurring basis

Except the Group’s exchangeable bonds
with carrying amount of approximately
HK$227,985,000 which is approximate
to its fair value, the directors consider
that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recognised
in the consolidated financial statements
approximately their fair values.

R2017 512 531 AN A AERE
Fair value hierarchy as at
31 December 2017

F18
Level 1
TER
HK$’000

F28
Level 2
TER
HK$’000

£33/ @t
Level 3 Total
TER TER
HK$’000 HK$’000

11,620 - 11,620

2016512 31 B AR ERF
Fair value hierarchy as at
31 December 2016
F248
Level 2
THEx
HK$'000

R Bat
Level 3 Total
FTHET FTHET
HK$'000 HK$’000

£188
Level 1
THT
HK$'000

SREE Financial asset

BEEBEHRE Investments held for trading 10,415 - - 10,415
AHHERE Available-for-sale

investments

FTRAES Listed equity securities 5,571 - - 5,571
THEBIA Listed debt instruments 42 816 - - 42,816
FELTEFIE Unlisted debt instruments 22,245 - - 22,245
&it Total 81,047 - - 81,047
tREE Financial liability

TTEERERE Derivative financial liabilities - 32,600 - 32,600
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The fair values of the financial assets
included in the level 2 above have been
determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on a
Binominal Option Pricing Model, with the
most significant inputs being the share
price, volatility, time to maturity, conversion
price and dividend yield.

Capital Risk Management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other shareholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings
divided by total assets as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group’s strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio within
50%. The gearing ratios at 31 December 2017 and
2016 were as follows:

2017 2016
FTET T

HK$’000 HK$’000

BEEE Total borrowings 2,047,170 1,540,626
BEHEE Total assets 7,502,278 5,246,469
AfELx Gearing ratio 27.3% 29.4%
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WA

AEETZREREEHEY  ©BEE
mER  RMEBXBERETEMER -
REBRFERNZBADHNT

Revenue

The Group is principally engaged in fertiliser business,
magnesium product business, metallurgical flux
business and electronic product business. An analysis
of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

2017 2016
FExT FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
HEREIERE R Sales of fertiliser products 2,225,499 1,399,088
HECBHEEM Sales of magnesium products 1,158,248 910,984
65 JoR 3 08 7B 7= Sales of metallurgical flux products 59,472 47,494
HEETER Sales of electronic products 329,071 231,655
3,772,290 2,589,221

o EBE R 8. Segment Information

SRERFEC K D BRAFMERARBITH
BE(ERLERRE)BSZERAER
REER - AEBREBEFEVHHRE LR
FYWMEE REBHHADILAT ¢

- BEREMES
TBEEMED
—  EREDEEEIZER
- BTEMEH
BRARKEZAIREDMENR T2 °

Information reported to the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer, being the chief operating decision maker, for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance focuses on the operating
divisions. The Group’s operating and reportable
segments under HKFRS 8 are therefore as follows:

- Fertiliser business

- Magnesium product business
- Metallurgical flux business

- Electronic product business

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
is presented below.
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DEUA R EE Segment Revenue and Results
AREBIZARMED I 2 WA REE DTN The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue
o and results by reportable segments.

HZE2017F 12 A31 HILFE ¢ For the year ended 31 December 2017:

REERMER SEEERXE RERMXR STERXE

Magnesium Metallurgical Electronic
Fertiliser product flux product
business business business business Total
TR TR TR THR TR
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ansi N Segment revenue 2,225,499 1,173,649 74,130 329,071 3,802,349
PR Inter-segment revenue - (15,401) (14,658) - (30,059)

RENTFEFHRA  Revenue from external

customers 2,225,499 1,158,248 59,472 329,071 3,772,290
EES Segment results 409,672 271,508 31,149 9,755 722,084
EFRA Other income, net 93,092
FRTHER Central administrative costs (258,852)
fElE5ERalEFIREE Share of profit and losses

of joint ventures 1,087
[E{s—RIBEAREF  Share of profit of an

associate 1
HBER Finance costs (151,486)
BRETERATAT Profit before income tax 405,926

'L10Z LHOd3Y TVNNNV %2102




152 B RMIEE
Notes to the Financial Statements

HE2017412 A31 BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

HEBXEEERARAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2016:

EXEHEE SEBEEREH R EfEMEE
Magnesium Metallurgical Electronic
Fertiliser product flux product
business business business business Total
7 TR T T TH7
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AHYA Segment revenue 1,399,088 910,984 62,882 231,655 2,604,609
AEEUA Inter-segment revenue - - (15,388) - (15,388)
RENIEFHMA  Revenue from external
customers 1,399,088 910,984 47,494 231,655 2,589,221
DEEE Segment results 351,118 263,112 22,773 (12,632) 624,371
EthERA Other income, net 51,010
FRTHER Central administrative costs (102,620)
e ERaEFIREE Share of profit and losses
of joint ventures 1,695
Ef—MEENRBE  Share of loss of an
associate 1)
HHER Finance costs (117 564)
BRATE A& R Profit before income tax 456,891

EX2HZHBRA - PRENBES R
EEZIA - HEBERBYEATFEE

~
VAR

ARED A2 BT BREARKE G5 HE
A DEEEERAES AR RITERE
BEREZHH BFTHMAFRA 8
EHRERBLRE  HE-—HNBRARZEK
@ R—HEERAZRERME - EhH—
FBERRNEERR BN REE - #
BEREABHA)BERTEDB X
BoRAETREERRERSUAHREH
ERMFEDHMERBAZTRA -

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. Inter-segment
transactions are entered into at arm’s length.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies.
Segment results represent the results from each
segment without allocation of central administrative
costs including directors’ emoluments, certain other
net income, including gain on bargain purchase, gain
on disposal of a subsidiary, impairment of investment
in a joint venture, share of profit and loss of an
associate and joint ventures, finance costs and income
tax expense. This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance.
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Segment Assets and Liabilities
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December
2017 and capital expenditure for the year then ended
by reportable segments are as follows:

BEER ¢EEER RREY EtER AhEit AAE fit

% 3 % &%

Magnesium Electronic

Fertiliser product Metallurgical  product Total

business  business flux business  business segment Unallocated Total
TET ThR TER ThT ThT THT TET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000
NHEE Segment assets 3,122,241 2,302,379 671,107 236,373 6,332,100 1,170,178 7,502,278
HHERE Segment liabilities 1,625,914 507,777 164,833 229,676 2,528,200 1,320,650 3,848,850
EXRR Capital expenditure 630,830 268,245 9,799 2,514 911,388 61,807 973,195

R2016F12 31 Bz HMEERBEAM
HEZHIEFERABRESH 2 EAME
R

KR
S

Fertiliser
business

%'ETE
HKS'000

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December
2016 and capital expenditure for the year then ended
by reportable segments are as follows:

ETER
X%
Magnesium Electronic
product  Metallurgical product Total
business  flux business business segment  Unallocated Total
ThEn Thn ThL Thn T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

PHEE Segment assets 1,331,615 1,899,550 645,179 198,233 4074577 1171892 5,246,469
HHaf Segment liabilities 384,707 466,808 154,745 212,800 1,219,069 972,934 2,192,003
BRRX Capital expenditure 402,934 86,573 11,019 908 501,434 30,656 532,090

REKREEDBRBALRR D BHEAELER
ZBF:

- BoBRRELENEE BEEE
%xﬁ RIT RIS ERME A B (E
REE BREVE BELRRBIE
L EURIRS) - B EEBDEEER

WE D ED

- BUTESRAE - UHBRES X
Rz B8 RE T HMEMNFEIN -
FBREONEERA MEDE

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance
and allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to reportable segments
other than asset classified as held for sale,
investments held for trading, bank and cash
balances and other assets for corporate use
which including property, plant and equipment
and other receivables;

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments
other than derivative financial liabilities,
exchangeable bonds, borrowings for corporate
use and certain other payables.
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HZE2017F 12 A31 HILEE ¢

Other Segment Information

For the year ended 31 December 2017:

BEER cREER REEY
£% % £ BTEREH i) fit
Magnesium Electronic
Fertiliser product Metallurgical product
business business flux business business  Unallocated Total
THT THT THT T#n ThT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
UER T Depreciation of property,
MRENZE plant and equipment
and investment properties 17,117 37,096 9,800 4,318 5,416 133,801
THERE FEER  Amortisation of land use rights,
EVEEAY mining rights and
intangible assets 1,017 6,265 1,980 475 12,739 28,476
FEER Provision for inventories - - - 3,400 - 3,400
EnRERE Product warranty provision - - - 303 - 303
ARIERERE Impairment of an available-for-
sale investment - - - 3,840 - 3,840
BEOESEWGERE  Reversal of impaiment and
R written off of trade
receivables - - - (102) - (102)
BARUFERE Impairment of trade
receivables 8,842 - - 532 - 9,374
At ESFERE Impairment of other
(BzE29) receivables (notes 29) 1,003 - - - - 1,003
HENE BER Loss/(gain] on disposal
FERTHERE of property, plant and
HER/ (i) equipment and
land use right 122 - (83) (2,693) (244) (2,898)
BIEEEREN Net realised and unrealised
BERRAER gain on nvestments held
et for trading - - - - (85) (85)
FiERER Income tax expenses 84,813 55,253 4,164 12 62 144,304
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For the year ended 31 December 2016:

ETEMEH v
Electronic
Fertiliser product Metallurgical product
business business  flux business busingss Unallocated Total
THI T Tin T Th T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
n% - BERRE Depreciation of property,
HRENERE plant and equipment and
investment properties 58,697 30,154 11,495 7,146 5,568 113,060
THERE FEER  Amortisation of land use rights,
By EERY mining rights and intangible
assets 824 2,988 2,062 879 9,565 16,318
EERZNARE Impairment of development
costs - - - 359 - 359
FRER Provision for inventories - - - 7,058 - 7,058
EnREkk Product warranty provision - - - 349 - 349
BEABEERRERE Reversal of unutiised product
warranty provision - - - (72) - (72)
AREERERE Impaiment of an available-
for-sale investment - - - - 460 460
BEAMENERE  Reversal of written off of
other receivables - - - (5,495) - (5,49)
BOZ5ENGUERNE  Reversal of impaiment
R and written off of trade
receivables - (279 - - - 279
BARUSERE Impairment of trade
receivables - 192 - 592 - 784
LENE  BER (Gain)/loss on disposal of
FEM(IR)/EE  property, plant and
equipment (225) - 62 (89) () (257)
RIEEEREN Net realised and unrealised
BERRAER gain on investments held
Y58 for trading - - - - (8,791) (8,791)
REEHERED Write-back of long-aged
accruals - (3,059) - - - (3,059)
FERER Income tax expenses 81,837 56,790 4,812 (27) 427 143,839
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9. HftizmsEEFE

Geographical Information

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016,
the Group mainly operated in the PRC and most of the
Group’s revenue are derived from the PRC and most
of non—current assets of the Group are located in
the PRC as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December
2016. No analysis of the Group’s result and assets by
geographical area is disclosed.

Information about Major Customers

No information about major customers is presented
as no single customer contributed over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group during the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016.

Other Gains or Losses, Net

2017 2016
FHExT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
B A Interest income 11,329 23,970
% B A Dividend income 26 769
HERHEERERE Gain on disposal of available—for-sale
investments 593 2,848
LEME - BEREHER Gain on disposal of property, plant
T+ b AR MR and equipment and land use right 2,898 257
T 70 BY) Government subsidy 468 2,198
SRIOTETEQARES Change in fair value of financial
(Pf3E37) derivatives (Note 37) 32,600 (487)
AR ERERE Impairment of an available-for-sale
investment (3,840) (460)
THE REE Sale of scrap materials 20,660 14,056
AR 75 & W A Service fee income 1,982 3,729
BTN Sundry income 14,230 7,070
80,946 53,950
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10. B E A 10. Finance Costs
2017 2016
FTET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
AR ES 2 ERXS Interest expenses on convertible bonds - 13,408
LIHBEERZFEAX Interest expenses on listed
subordinated notes 54,745 55,986
AERESF AL Interest expenses on exchangeable
bonds 38,041 23,375
BAROIFANEZHEEZ Interest on borrowings wholly
EERFE repayable within five years 58,700 24,795
BRAFRZBERY Interest on borrowings wholly
BEHFE repayable after five years 7,745 9,083
BER AN B Total borrowing costs 159,231 126,647
W EREEREE Less: amount capitalised in the cost
MAER L &8 of qualifying assets (7,745) (9,083)
151,486 117,564

EAERZMEFHER LR BEF557%

(20164 : HF5.55%) °

The weighted average capitalisation rate of fund borrowed

generally is 5.57% per annum (2016: 5.55% per annum).
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11. i8R

KA BERRBRERERAAR /G
AR X B 4

11. Income Tax Expense

The amount of income tax expense charged/(credited)
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income represents:

2017 2016
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000

BIHARH IR Current tax:
—BEFER - Hong Kong Profits Tax - -
— B ETSR - PRC Enterprises Income Tax 145,740 146,287
—HAfb - Others 12 22
145,752 146,309
PEIERIE (M5 40) Deferred taxation (Note 40) (1,448) (2,470)
144,304 143,839

(a) FERE
EEFNEREEHZ 2017 F X 2016
F12A31BEFEZHTERTE G
MZ16.5%H - HREB B EE
ERERBRF - WEE2017F12 A
31 HIEFEHASFERMBIIE2016
FEET) o

FEIEMER
FRCEMSHINIZEEZ2017F &
2016 F 12 A31 HILFE 2 hETER
TRHER 2 25% 514 o

(b)

BINREBE
ARBIIRBEREHERRVENHS
HEEMRIRERRERAT A
BUHERLANHESHEMER - &
RENRBREZEEK L ZHERF
IIRBEBREZESBEEERARA
FEMARSZ - 3 7% #A S B A B8 iR X BE
SMEH -

(c)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Hong Kong Profits Tax

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profits for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. No tax is
payable for the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: HK$NIl) since there was no assessable
profit generated in Hong Kong.

The PRC Enterprise Income Tax

The PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at
25% on the estimated assessable profits arising
in the PRC for the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016.

Overseas Income Tax

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law of Cayman
Islands and, accordingly, is exempted from
Cayman lIslands income tax. The Company’s
subsidiaries established in the British Virgin
Islands were incorporated under the International
Business Companies Act of the British Virgin
Islands and, are exempted from British Virgin
Islands income tax.
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The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using a
tax rate of 256%, the standard income tax rate of the
PRC enterprises, as follows:

2017 2016
FEx FABT
HK$’000 % HK$’000
BR P15 T A& A1 Profit before income tax 405,926 456,891
REAMEHHE25%  Tax charge at applicable
(2016 %F : 25%) income tax rate of
ATEEBIE 25% (2016: 25%) 101,481 25.0 114,223 25.0
REAMENERE LR Effect of different tax
=PSRN B rates of subsidiaries
ZRE operating in other
jurisdictions 7,577 1.9 6,613 1.4
BERBHRAZ Tax effect of income not
BB E taxable for tax
purpose (18,173) (4.5) (4,781) (1.0)
EEEERBNETR Share of profits of joint
ventures (179) (0.1) (280) (0.1)
AR HERS Tax effect of expenses
BB E not deductible for tax
purpose 28,873 7.1 19,955 4.4
AR AR Utilisation of previous
2T E B unrecognised tax
losses (5,440) (1.3) (3,845) (0.8)
KRR hETHIE Tax effect of estimated
BEONBETE tax losses not
recognised 30,165 7.4 11,954 2.6
PriSHiF % Income tax expense 144,304 35.5 143,839 31.4

MR2017F 12831 H ZEB RABER M
T8 &5 18 49765,548,000 JT(2016 4 :
737,214,000 7 7T ) 7] 4% 8% LA §5 K 2R FE R
i % M o #7270,955,0007% JT (2016 4F ¢
266,561,000/ 7T ) < BB B 8 K 7 B E
FERzHGHFERTAFRIE MY
494,593,000/ 7t(20164F : 470,653,000
BT 2 BIEEBA AT ER LS - ARR
BARME BIE 2 ERBUE I EAKE A
HIBBEYE  NZSEWHBABBECRLER

TR R I R TR o

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has unrecognised
tax losses of approximately HK$765,548,000 (2016:
HK$737,214,000), which can be carried forward to
offset future taxable profit. Tax losses of approximately
HK$270,955,000 (2016: HK$266,561,000) will expire
after five years from the year of assessment they relate
to while tax losses of approximately HK$494,593,000
(2016: HK$470,653,000) can be carried forward
indefinitely. The deferred tax benefit of such tax losses
has not been recognised as it is not considered
probable that future taxable profit will be available to
utilise the unused tax losses.
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12. FRIER

FRRMNEMNR(ER)T5EM

12. Profit for the Year

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/

CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

HEEXEEZERERAA

(crediting):
2017 2016
FEx FHL
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERES Wages and salaries 287,856 188,443
BEYEEREE 2 BERE Share options granted to directors and
employees 309 1,075
XA BE R FUR ARG BIFE Payment to defined contribution
retirement plans 14,445 8,816
BEIRAN(BEESHH) Total staff costs (including
directors’ emoluments) 302,610 198,334
1% A 355 Auditors’ remuneration
%V&%’W‘Hﬁﬁl{’ﬁ Audit and audit related work
B MmEBMERA - HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited 4,387 3,573
— E Az B — other auditor - 1,700
3F%VI{’E Non-audit work
BEestmEBRaRA — HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited 184 184
ﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬁ Depreoiation and amortisation 162,277 129,378
HEME - BEREER Net gain on disposal of property,
T A 2 W e F 5 plant and equipment and
land use right (2,898) (257)
BEEERENEEBINZE  Realised and unrealised gain on
investments held for trading (85) (9,568)
BIEESIRENAREREE  Unrealised loss on investments
held for trading - e
BRABAX CFEKAE Cost of inventories recognised as
an expense 2,605,228 1,616,840
T REF ALHENES Operating lease rentals in respect of
land and buildings 7,539 7,495
FENARE Impairment of development costs - 359
FEEA Provision for inventories 3,400 7,058
EmIRE RS Product warranty provision 303 349
RECEFTRIBRE Write-back of long-aged accruals - (3,059)
BORBARERE Reversal of unutilised warranty provision - (72)
B8 5 RN IERE kR Reversal of impairment of and
written off of trade receivables (102) (279)
g SR IERIE Impairment of trade receivables 9,374 784
H b el kBRI E Impairment of other receivables 1,003 -
18 [0 H A e W R IE AR Reversal of written off of other receivables - (5,495)
AEHERERE Impairment of an available-for-sale
investment 3,840 460
MRS Research and development expenses:
B ERERA Development costs amortised - 397
FEKARE Impairment of development costs - 359
KEEZH Current year expenditure 16,690 19,342




i

ERRISOEDIETA - AEEAEPEE
B [7)— JE U & SR KR 3R - 2%
HEBN ERERG S - RIBE BT
RE - NEEREEHSH14% M %aT
SR WARRFRETRZIN - AEER
ERARERIXNEZERERREMNZE
F - ZIBEA R ERERKET S 8 ERIK
BEMEZHEZSEME -

REEDAERBREELHRESTE -
BESFTEIBR EEMRGTE  BELE
AAER - RIBUESTE  AEERHE
EREREASERERFMELEDIEN
RREEBWRAZSRIEAMZAEER - A
2014F6 1B AEBEREEHRRZ
FRAESA1,5008TT °

H E2017F12B31B I FE A& E
MEMBEEZSHEAEEOERAED
14,445,000/ 7T(20164F : 8,816,000/
JL) e M2017F 12 A31H » AEBEL &
BEMESEMRRERATARRDEAER
R (2016 F - BHETT) -

note:

b E Y
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HZE2017F12 A31 BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the
Group contributes to a state-sponsored retirement
plan for its employees in the PRC, which is a defined
contribution plan. The Group contributes approximately
14% of the employees’ salary as specified by the local
government, and the Group has no future obligations
for the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement
benefits beyond the annual contributions. The state-
sponsored retirement plan is responsible for the entire
pension obligations to retired employees.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the MPF Scheme, a defined contribution
scheme managed by an independent trustee. Under
the MPF Scheme, each of the Group and its Hong
Kong employees make monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Since
1 June 2014, both the Group’s and the employees’
contributions are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per
month.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
aggregate amount of the Group’s contributions to the
aforementioned pension schemes was approximately
HK$14,445,000 (2016: HK$8,816,000). As at 31
December 2017, the Group was not entitled to any
forfeited contributions to reduce the Group’s future
contributions (2016: HK$Nil).
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13. £ FETHAEBREEFHMK 13. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and
ReHHMAL Employees’ Emoluments and Individuals
with Highest Emoluments

(a) EE=HTH (a) Directors’ Emoluments
HEC017F12A3HIEFERES The emoluments of each director for the year
ZEHBMEINT ended 31 December 2017 is set below:

EXmEHRe
He #e BhRE e Ch
Employer’s

contribution

Share  to pension
Fees Salaries options scheme Total
TEL THEL THERL TEL THEL
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

HITES Executive directors

WXE(FE) Chi Wen Fu (Chairman) - 1,380 - 18 1,398

R (78 EA) Shum Sai Chit (C£O) - 996 - 18 1,014

HES Chi Bi Fen - 9296 - 18 1,014

FRTES Non-executive director

PEE Guo Mengyong 35 - - - 35

BIFGTES Independent non-executive

directors

Bmx Kwong Ping Man 75 - - - 75

Bt Sheng Hong 35 - - - 35

R Lau Chi Kit 240 - 45 - 285
385 3,372 45 54 3,856

CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

HEEXEEZERERAA
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The emoluments of each director for the year

ZFNES T ended 31 December 2016 is set below:
BEmRAE
RRE sl
Employer’s
contribution
Share to pension
Fees Salaries options scheme Total
TAL TAT TET TAL TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HiTESE Executive directors
WXE(LE) Chi Wen Fu (Chairman) - 1,300 15 18 1,333
W (7THE) Shum Sai Chit (CEO) - 650 12 18 680
HEX Chi Bi Fen - 650 12 18 680
BI Yang Yuchuan' - 380 275 10 665
FHTES Non-executive director
PEE Guo Mengyong 35 - 4 - 39
BUFHTES Independent non-executive
directors
Bmx Kwong Ping Man 75 - 4 - 79
s Sheng Hong 35 - 4 - 39
S Lau Chi Kit 240 - 144 - 384
385 2,980 470 64 3,899

1. BR2016F8 A4 HET -

1. Resigned on 4 August 2016.
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(b)

(c)

AUSESHEMAL (b) Five Highest Paid Individuals
RER - AEERUSRERHFMALES The five individuals whose emoluments were
FE1HI(2016F 1) RARIESE the highest in the Group for the year included
EREEHNeNITERN EXXHRE - 1 (2016: 1) director of the Company whose
FANENTHT 2402(20164F : 4 director’s emoluments are disclosed in the above
)AL ZE&IT - analysis. The emoluments payable to the rest
4 (2016: 4) individuals during the year are as
follows:
2017 2016
FET FAEIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
EAXFHe - B Basic salaries, share options,

H 2 R EWH = other allowances and benefits in kind 5,422 5,001
ZEe Inducement fee 68 -
BReBR —TREHK Pension costs-defined

FT & contribution plan 149 153

5,639 5,154
ZAGI(2016F 4 ) ZREHFM AL The emoluments of the 4 (2016: 4) individuals with the
BB e BN IA T #E - highest remuneration are within the following bands:
AE

Number of individuals

£ % 1,000,000 & 7T Nil — HK$1,000,000 o 1
1,000,001 & TE HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000
2,000,000/ 7T 4 3
4 4
HZE2017F K2016F 12 A31 H It (c) During the years ended 31 December 2017 and
FE - AEBVERTIRARGES 2016, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
ERAfGaHFMA TN ERRE any of the directors of the Company and the five
BE - REZE 2017 F %2016 F 12 highest paid individuals as compensation for loss
AB1BIEFE  BIERARAIEFR of office. There was no director of the Company
AfummH A TRENERE RE and the five highest paid individuals agreed to
EEEA S o waive or waived any emoluments during the

years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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b) FARBHAERIMNARF B
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FARABRRD RS
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14. Dividend

a) The directors of the Company do not recommend
the payment of any dividend for the year ended
31 December 2017 and 2016.

b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the year:

2017 2016
FHET
HK$’000

FTEx
HK$’000

Dividend recognised as distribution

during the year:

(2016 F : J&Af+t
2015 F R HAE B
R EEAL 1.381(l)

(2016: 2015 final dividend of
1.3 HK cents per ordinary share)

- 59,774

15. SREF
(@ EXR
SREABFIZRBEEDTES AR
HERNEF - BRAERNBEBITEBER
T BETE o

15. Earnings Per Share
(a) Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

| zov7 IRNE

KAaEB AEGFR Profit for the year attributable to

wA(FET) owners of the Company (HK$’000) 260,316 302,334
BT E B AR N Weighted average number of ordinary

FHE(TFRR) shares in issue (thousand shares) 4,590,863 4,599,751
BREXREF Basic earnings per share

(BFRH) (HK cents per share) 5.67 6.57

L102 LHOd3H TVNNNV %2102




166

CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

LB AEEZERERAF

s B
Notes to the Financial Statements

HZE2017F 12 A31 BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

(b) #F
BEREERNERRELAAEET
BEEER - ARBREHTEAEBRM
BFOBEE - RRARBEZREEN
BTGB BRE - JERESK
A HRARAE 55 o

TEBREMS - A2 REBERRITE
BT - REREEEETE
E o EBEEARAASEGAKR R
AzRmFEAmEET)BEANRKRND
HE - REXMEFTENROEE -
B ITHEEREMEITAORNEE
ELLE - HRNERETFEERRNERE
2017 F & 2016 F 12 A31H L F E
Ml FHEmE WA ESREER
FI B I MR R AT R AR RO B A o

RABBRESMS  EAREEN
JE - RIEMESMM SR ER AT E
HERREBRAR AR RO OENE
RERZIE - HYWESHASREER
MEtE (201646 - JEBREFARE
SEUE)

AR ESFME  EERBER
JE - AR ESEREE2016F 12
ASIHLEFERNBHERD - HI &
AAATRBERTE -

FR A 18 A 17 166 B RS A B e S A
HE2017F K20165FE12 A31 A 1
FESREARARBERFIER -

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated
by adjusting the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The Company has three categories of
dilutive potential ordinary shares: share options,
exchangeable bonds and convertible bonds.

For the share options, a calculation is done to
determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average market price of the Company’s shares
during the period) based on the monetary value
of the subscription rights attached to outstanding
share options. The number of shares calculated
as above is compared with the number of shares
that would have been issued assuming the
exercise of the share options. The computation
of diluted earnings per share does not assume
the exercise of the Company’s share options
because the exercise price of those share
options was higher than the average market price
of shares for the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016.

For the exchangeable bonds, the effect of which
was anti-dilutive. The right to convert the shares
of China Rare Earth Magnesium Technology
Holdings Limited attaching to the exchangeable
bonds has terminated during the year. They were
not included in the calculation of diluted earnings
per share (2016: the effect of exchangeable
bonds were anti-dilutive).

For the convertible bonds, the effect of which
was anti-dilutive. The convertible bonds were
fully redeemed during the year ended 31
December 2016. They were not included in the
calculation of diluted earnings per share.

The basic and diluted earnings per share are
the same for the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016 as the effect of share options
outstanding were anti-dilutive.
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16. Land Use Rights

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent
prepaid operating lease payments and their net
carrying values are analysed as follows:
2017 2016

FHET
HK$’000

FTERT
HK$’000

In the PRC, held on:

FRHAFR 49 Medium term leases 319,824 211,469
RBEE Current assets 8,647 4,723
ERBEE Non-current assets 311,177 206,746

319,824 211,469

R2017F12A31H B @M E A #©
210,379,000 7T(2016 4F : 103,855,000
Bzt ERREBIERBITIER ZIER
(F3E35) °

As at 31 December 2017, land use rights with a
carrying amount of approximately HK$210,379,000
(2016: HK$103,855,000) have been pledged to secure
bank borrowings (Note 35).
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17. Y% - BMERRE

17. Property, Plant and Equipment

EgLHRET HRIR-
(W&l Erhzsg RERAE GARMOZRE I5RER it} i (R&ii) i
Leasehold
land and Furniture Construction-
buildings Leasehold Plant and and office Tooling Motor in-progress
(note (i))  improvements machinery equipment  and moulds vehicles Ship (note (i) Total
TEn TR TR TR TEn TR TEn TR TR
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HKS'000
ik Cost
ROBEIEIE  Asal 1 Janvery 2016 510,164 I 844,169 1295 3061 1230 30 845,345 2050791
EHENG! Acaquistion of subsidares
(Kaa ) (Note 47 (1) 198 - % - - - - 6 665
i Additions 5091 5 il W 55 2756 14238 179013
£ Translers o7 130450 a0 - - (14052 -
i} Disposals - - 028 ) ) {4018] - - 6894
ELE Exchanges algnment 13,177 4 70,13 3% (1695) (%) ) m,14) (186,197)
ROIBE12R 318 Asat 3t December 2016
WIEIA1E and 1 January 2017 485,868 22,001 938 961 1202 1402 10,083 34 1,074,664 2,546,318
et Acaquistion of subsiares
(W41 o) (Note 47 (3) 199077 282870 10212 1493 1269 19973
WE-BMEAT  Disposelofa sbsiday - - - i} - (1% - (159
5 Additons 5% 130 12,608 6908 1418 1,184 80572 914 638
£ Transfers 276,790 - 517,797 7 - 11 (194804 -
& Disposals 98 (1201 6357) (] (1168) 50%) - - (19,49
kS Exchanges algnment 1997 2603 9752 2% 1975 10 7 8,079 U082
Ho017E12R 318  Asat 31 December 2017 1,009,275 U5 1,824,590 28,339 3,627 21,864 B 1208148 4,180,969
2k Accumulated deprecation
H16E1F1H Asat 1 January 2016 52,763 28209 298746 7,94 1522 5188 30 - 389,762
EnZy Ohenge for the year 15,348 70 89334 1417 1,280 193 - - 110013
HERHE Elminated on disposel - - (2.8 g (320 9% - - (873
Eige Exchange algrment 585) pAt) (29,369) 05 (1841 544 ) - (12,113
ROIBE12R 318 Asat 3t December 2016
NIEIA1E and 1 January 2017 62,80 21,500 306,429 7,036 Al 3,084 34 - 451,809
Enjie Charge for the year 20783 29 93,001 5,362 1,086 3269 - - 130,793
HE-EHEATREE Eiminated on disposal
of & subsidiary - - - (10) - 29 - - (39
HERH Eiminated on disposel (654 (1.201] (5,145) (2,760 (1,169 39 - - [11,251)
Eia% Exchanges alignment 1623 2,004 36,143 2289 1998 456 xa - 51,040
H20175428318  As at 31 December 2017 97,032 23,190 480,428 11,847 2407 6,077 381 - 622,32
BERE Net carrying values
20175428318  As at 31 December 2017 912,243 1,555 1,344,162 16,492 1,130 14,881 1,268,148 3,558,617
HO0IBE12AE  Asal 3t December 2016 423,608 4% 82,532 4,989 781 6,499 - 1,074 664 2,093,569
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notes:

(

) The carrying amount of the Group’s leasehold land
and buildings at the end of the reporting period are
analysed as follows:

2017 2016

FBx FAT

HK$’000 HK$’000

BB ERTEL Medium term leases in Hong Kong 6,747 6,965
A B R HRAR 40 Medium term leases in the PRC 905,496 416,643
912,243 423,608

R2017F 128310 7 B 8 A 4

7,745,000 (2016 4 : 9,083,000 %
TL)WERNME R ATERETLRE - BEEE
TITRZOWHWT :

(ii) As at 31 December 2017, interest expenses of
approximately HK$7,745,000 (2016: HK$9,083,000)
was capitalised and included in construction-in-
progress. An analysis of construction-in-progress is as

follows:
2017 2016
FHET T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
AE L RIEF Leasehold land and buildings 541,094 328,450
BE Kk Es Plant and machinery 727,054 746,214
1,268,148 1,074,664

R2017%F12A31H B ® E A 4
424,713,000 7T(2016 £ : 203,284,000
B ZHELMRIET  BERZHEIE
BIRTTIEE 2 A (HIsE35) o

REZE2017F K20165F 12 A31 B 1L F
¥ ASEESRABMERESRBEARLG
AEFEREMEEKZRER

=3

(i)  As at 31 December 2017, leasehold land and
buildings and plant and machinery with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$424,713,000 (2016:
HK$203,284,000) have been pledged to secure bank
borrowings (Note 35).

(iv)  During the year ended 31 December 2017 and
2016, the directors of the Group considered that
no impairment loss should be recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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RAFEZYE - BE MR EZERFH

The useful lives of property, plant and equipment

w adopted for the current year are as follows:
—HE L RIEF FAEHRNK34F - - Leasehold land and buildings ~ Over the shorter of
&P E RS lease terms or
34 years
— MEEE 2E5F - Leasehold improvements 2 to 5 years
— B Mg 4FE 25 - Plant and machinery 4 to 25 years
— BRI AERE 4FE34F - Furniture and office equipment 4 to 34 years
— AE 4BTHF - Motor vehicles 4 to 7 years
— fuAf 54 - Ship 5 years
— TEREKEA 24 - Tooling and moulds 2 years
18. REYHE 18. Investment Properties
FHET
HK$’000
R Cost
R20164F1A1H As at 1 January 2016 156,668
VE 8 & Exchange alignment (10,660)
R2016F12 A31 B K As at 31 December 2016 and
201791 A1H 1 January 2017 146,008
EREZOHERFIELENEE Transfer to assets classified as held for sale (157,075)
FE 5, A B Exchange alignment 11,067
R2017F12H31H As at 31 December 2017 -
ZtinE Accumulated depreciation
H2016F1A1H As at 1 January 2016 31,232
FHITE Charge for the year 3,048
M 5, 5 B Exchange alignment (2,273)
M2016%F 12 A31H R As at 31 December 2016 and
2017F1 B1H 1 January 2017 32,007
FRITE Charge for the year 3,008
ERENBEABIEFLHENEE Transfer to assets classified as held for sale (37,554)
BE 3¢, o B Exchange alignment 2,539
R2017512/31H As at 31 December 2017 -
AREFE Net carrying values
R2017512/31H As at 31 December 2017 -
K20164 12 A 31 H As at 31 December 2016 114,001
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE2017412 A31 BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

The investment properties represent the buildings
related to phase one, phase two and phase three of
the Yunxiao properties.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a
straight line basis over the lease term. The estimated
useful life of the investment properties range from 43
to 48 years.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2016 was approximately HK$144,381,000.
The valuation was performed by independent qualified
valuers not connected with the Group. Based on the
result of management’s assessment by making reference
to the valuation report issued by the independent
qualified valuers, there is no impairment on the carrying
value of the Group’s investment properties as at 2016.
The investment properties were transferred to assets
classified as held for sale during the year ended 31
De